MAGNOLIA PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Advanced Meeting Package

Regular Meeting

Date/Time:
Monday
October 13, 2025
5:30 p.m.

Location:
Hilton Garden Inn Tampa Riverview Brandon
4328 Garden Vista Drive
Riverview, FL 33578

Note: The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption.




Magnolia Park Community Development District

c/o Vesta District Services
250 International Parkway, Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL 32746
321-263-0132

Board of Supervisors
Magnolia Park Community Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Magnolia Park Community Development
District is scheduled for Monday, October 13, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. at Hilton Garden Inn Tampa
Riverview Brandon — 4328 Garden Vista Drive Riverview, FL 33578.

The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for
your review and consideration. Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting.

Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact the District Manager at (321)
263-0132 X 398 or bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com. We look forward to seeing you at the
meeting.

Sincerely,

Barry Jeskewich
District Manager

Cc: Attorney
Engineer
District Records


mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com

Page 1 of 2
MAGNOLIA PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Meeting Date: Monday, October 13, 2025 Click Here to Join the Meeting Online
Time: 5:30 p.m. Dial-in Number 1-904-348-0776
Location: Hilton Garden Inn Tampa Riverview Brandon  Conference ID: 766 858 449#
4328 Garden Vista Drive (Mute/Unmute: *6)
Riverview, FL 33578 (Raise/Lower Hand: *5)
Agenda

For the full agenda packet, please contact: cdimaculangan@vestapropertyservices.com
L. Roll Call

I1. Staff Reports 1

A. District Engineer Report — Greg Woodcock, Stantec
III.  Audience Comments — Agenda Items (Limited to 3 Minutes per Individual)
IV.  Business Matters

A. Vendor Reports

1. Review of Magnolia Park CDD Website Maintenance Request Log Exhibit 1
Through 10/10
2. Agquatic Maintenance — Mitchell Hartwig, Solitude Lake Management Exhibit 2
3. Landscape Maintenance — Cristi Cochran, United Land Services Exhibit 3
a. Consideration of United Land Services Proposals:
1. Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Service Agreement Exhibit 4
Renewal (tabled from previous meeting)
ii. Pre-approval Amount for United Landscape 2025 Exhibit 5
Hurricane & Storm Cleanup (tabled from previous
meeting)
ii. #182763 for One-time Clean-up of Pond 19 Exhibit 6

Perimeter (Designated Wetland/Conservation
Area) - $3,628.13 (tabled from previous

meeting)

Iv. #187403 for Vegetation Removal Along Pond Exhibit 7
29 Fence - $8,157.33 (tabled from previous
meeting)

V. #186703 to Remove Overgrowth Along Exhibit 8

Falkenburg Fenceline - $9,333.33 (tabled from
previous meeting)
Vi. #190888 to Repair Irrigation Issues Found Exhibit 9
During September 24 Inspection (Sheet
Attached) - $1,914.10

vii.  #190885 to Trench and Install Exposed 2 Wire Exhibit 10
into Conduit Controller F by Bassett Court -
$1,289.10

DRAFT — Revised 10/10/2025



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OGUwMzk0MjYtZGE4OS00ZTJiLTlkMTktZjVlMTQ1ZDY0MWI2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%228af87444-20b6-4d0d-8eb0-34a4747a03fd%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b972186f-9719-4b44-bdb6-31b88894beeb%22%7d
mailto:cdimaculangan@vestapropertyservices.com

MAGNOLIA PARK October 13, 2025 Agenda

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

4, Field Operations Report — Michael Bush, Vesta District Services
V. Staff Reports 2
A District Counsel — Tucker Mackie, Kutak Rock
B. District Manager — Barry Jeskewich, Vesta District Services
1. Update on Aquatic Maintenance Agreement
2. Update on HOA/CDD Relationship
VI.  Consent Agenda

A Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular
Meeting Held September 8, 2025

B. Consideration and Acceptance of the August 2025 Unaudited Financial Report

VII.  Supervisor Requests (Includes Next Meeting Agenda Item Requests)
VIII. Audience Comments — New Business (Limited to 3 Minutes per Individual)
IX.  Next Meeting Quorum Check 5:30 p.m. on Monday, November 10, 2025

Page 2 of 2

Exhibit 11

Exhibit 12

Exhibit 13

Exhibit 14

Hilton Garden Inn Tampa Riverview Brandon
4328 Garden Vista Drive, Riverview, FL 33578

X. Action Items Summary

XI.  Adjournment

DRAFT — Revised 10/10/2025




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXRHIBIT 1




Magnolia Park CDD Website Field Service Requests

Entry Date
# Created

151{2025-09-26

To:

Field Manager

Name

Moore

Address

9213 Mountain
Magnolia Dr

Message

Good morning,

I would like to request lake management and
maintenance for the inner pond located behind the
residence at 9213 Mountain Magnolia Dr. Over the past
three years, this pond has not been maintained, and I've
noticed that grass and vegetation are rapidly growing
and now beginning to take over nearly half of the water
area

Could you please advise on the process and timeline for
addressing this issue, along with any planned solutions?
Thank you for your attention to this matter. | look
forward to your response.

Best,

Shae

Resolution

150]2025-09-24

Field Manager

Kelly

6411 Foxbury Ridge Ln

Need to know what will be done to this WOODEN AREA
located in the back of my home. When | purchased my
home in December 2009, there was a POND behind my
home. That is one of the reasons | choose to purchase
this home. | never would imagine years later my
backyard view is a wooden area. What will be done to
rectify this problem? There are numerous wildlife in
those woods.

149{2025-09-18

Landscape

Marin

4927 White Sanderling
Court

| wanted to address the area behind the West
Townhomes. The area separating the townhomes from
Asbury is currently in poor condition, with patchy grass
and overgrown, disordered bushes that detract from the
overall appearance. The bushes are also patchy and
make the area untidy in appearance due to the lack of
upkeep. | along with my neighbors would be very
appreciative of any upkeep or updates you can provide.

148]2025-09-15

Landscape

Anello

9107 MOUNTAIN
MAGNOLIA DR

There are weeds that are starting to grow into trees, and
vines that are taking over the landscaped areas along the
entrance of the south gates. | am happy to meet up with
someone to show them.

At thr Progress gate- its across from the gate code box.
The Falkenburg gate- you can see them from the
backside of the fence more easily.

These have been ignored and now its starting to look like
big bushes/trees and they are not supposed to be there

147]2025-09-12

Field Manager

Ciudad Real

6334 yellow buckeye dr

I would like to get my back fence line maintained since it
is on the map but hasn’t been maintained in years

146|2025-09-10

Landscape

Foll

5214 Fallen Leaf Drive

Part of our backyard has not being mowed the past three
weeks. | believe there is some confusion between United
and Yellowbird on who's responsibility this is but this
overgrowth is unacceptable. A representative from
Yellowbird is arguing with me that it is not their
responsibility but it needs to be addressed. Can someone
please assist?

145{2025-09-10

Landscape

Pieslak

4833 white sanderling
ct

Grass around pond and entire fence perimeter is over a
foot high. | will wait 5 business days before submitting

another complaint to the county code enforcement for
failure to maintain lawn care.

Return to Agenda




Magnolia Park CDD Website Field Service Requests

Entry Date To: Name Address Message Resolution
# Created
The vegetation growth around the pond behind our
house has not been maintained properly. The growth is
out of control, No weed whacking has taken place in
weeks, and the last time they did weed whack they only
did it behind the homes not the complete pond
8941 Turnstone Haven |perimeter. If | could send pictures | would but | do not
144|2025-09-10|Field Manager [Faville Place see anywhere on here to do that.
The rear left corner of pond #9 (Lake Cherrywood) is
severely overgrown and the water is completely covered
6321 Magnolia Park in invasive vegetation. This has been reported several
143]2025-09-04|Aquatics Upshaw Blvd times since June.
142|2025-08-13|Landscape Stephenson |8417 Loblolly Pine Ct  |Last year the hurricanes knocked over a couple trees that|Board is waiting
are in the CDD property into my yard. The crew came out|to make
and trimmed the trees but left the stumps. They told me [decisions on this.
they would be back soon to grind the stumps since they |(Tree
didn’t have the equipment with them. It has almost been |replacement
a full year and no stumps have been removed. Grassis  [options
growing over them and the they cause water to pool on |presented by
my property when it rains. When will someone be out to |ULS at April &
take care of this? May 2025 mtgs)
141{2025-08-12|Landscape PROVEDEL |8709 Turnstone Shore |Good afternoon! This has been
Lane Would like to request the CDD to send a team to discussed with
cut/trim (maintain) the area between my backyard and |Greg and United.
the preservation behind my house. According to the map |We have to
the area appears to be responsibility of the CDD and lack |apply for permits
of maintenance now has overgrown vegetation to cut this area,
advancing into my property. Checked with HOA for we are thinking
maintenance and they informed the area is to be it would be done
maintained by CDD. This was also discussed during CDD |once or twice a
meeting on 8/12/2025. Thank you! year.
140|2025-07-24|Field Manager [Fight 8648 Turnstone Shore |Good Morning, | am writing in reference to my backyard |This has been
Lane at 8648 Turnstone Shore Lane. The area behind my discussed with

property and HOA Property is owned by CDD and has not
been mowed since Hurricane Milton (Oct. 2024) the area
is overgrown and tree debris from hurricane still remain.
| have been the sole owner of this property for 14 years
and this area has never been this overgrown or not
maintained. Kindly advise if anything has changed over
the past 14 years that CDD is no longer maintaining this
area. While | understand it is part of conservation area,
it is more than 6ft above the waterline and, again, has
never been left in this condition in 14 years. It is not
only an eye-sore for myself, but also my neighbors view,
and imagine it depreciates the value of the
home/neighborhood, as well as the overgrowth
compromising the health of the large oak tree that is
being hugged by weeds. | can provide photos via email,
if requested.

I look forward to hearing back from you soon.

Greg and United.
We have to
apply for permits
to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.

Return to Agenda




Magnolia Park CDD Website Field Service Requests

Entry Date To: Name Address Message Resolution
# Created
139|2025-07-22|Field Manager |Faville 8941 Turnstone Haven |l emailed you about the pond behind our house and it This has been
Place not being properly maintained. Today there was one discussed with
person on a mower but only mowed one row. The weed |Greg and United.
whackers did not do the entire perimeter. Still no We have to
spraying for weeds, they are our of control. | was told by |apply for permits
our people that | can report this to higher authorities. to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.
138|2025-07-08|Field Manager [Faville 8941 Turnstone Haven |Hello, we live on a pond in Magnolia Park West, 8941 This has been
Place Turnstone Haven Place. The weeds growing out of the discussed with
water are out of control. They haven't been treated in Greg and United.
months( we have cameras) The weeds on the ground We have to
haven't been weed whacked in a very long time, they are |apply for permits
out of control. The mowing is very minimal, maybe one |to cut this area,
swipe it looks terrible back there. Could we please give |we are thinking
our ponds somee attention? Thanks, Elaine Faville it would be done
once or twice a
year.
137|2025-07-03|Landscape Rosario Medr|136 piave street Hello, | am one of the homeowners of the address This has been
provided above. The tree that was planted in front of my |discussed with
property is falling. | would like to know who is Greg and United.
responsible for replacing or replanting the tree? The We have to
homeowners or the CDD? If the CDD is responsible, then, |apply for permits
what are the steps to request it? Thank you in advance |to cut this area,
for your help. we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.
133|2025-06-16|Landscape Upshaw 6321 Magnolia Park Please send someone to my home to address the This has been
Blvd overgrowth around the lake behind my home. The discussed with
landscaping company contracted with Magnolia Park is [Greg and United.
refusing the maintain it and the CDD map shows the We have to
wetland conservation easement is 30 ft from the water's |apply for permits
edge. | would like for this area to be measured and to cut this area,
clearly identified for myself and the HOA because | am  |we are thinking
currently unable to use my back yard due to the amount |it would be done
of overgrowth. There is no maintenance happening well |once or twice a
past 30 feet. year.
131{2025-06-09|Landscape Perez 5941 Sweet Birch Dr Common ground areas behind north side of Sweet Birch [6/16 - ULS crew
Drive, behind houses and around pond, have not been serviced
mowed in weeks resulting in oveegrown grass and
shrubs around perimeter. Request area be mowed and
kept a per rregilar schedule.

Return to Agenda




Magnolia Park CDD Website Field Service Requests

Entry Date To: Name Address Message Resolution
# Created
130{2025-06-05|Landscape Diaz 5104 Fallen Leaf Dr Hey | have serious concerns about some overgrown trees |This has been
taking over my property line, they are supposed to be discussed with
taken care by the CDD, they haven't come for years. Greg and United.
Please help before they destroy my house. We have to
apply for permits
to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.
129(2025-06-03|Landscape Pabon-Harris |9110 Mountain Hello. | live at 9110 mountain magnolia Dr in Magnolia  |This has been
Magnolia Dr Park South. For over a month the backyard grass has not |discussed with
been cut properly. The grass closer to the trees are being |Greg and United.
skipped completely and looks terrible. | was advised by |We have to
the HOA manager that this now falls under the CDD, apply for permits
which is new information. When will the area be tended |[to cut this area,
to? | am happy to provide pictures as necessary we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.
128(2025-05-30|Landscape Cullars 8514 Bassett Ct Good evening, Board is waiting
| have several tree stumps in the backyard outside of my |to make
property line that need to be removed. Due to past decisions on this.
hurricanes, the trees were damaged and removed. (Tree
However, the stumps were not. Please advise on replacement
removal. options
Thanks, presented by
Lisa ULS at April &
May 2025 mtgs)
127]2025-05-28|Landscape Jimenez 9013 Mountain We were told by the EPC that the CDD is responsible for |This has been
Magnolia Dr the fence line to the pond where our grass is very discussed with
overgrown. They said the CDD needs to requests a Greg and United.
permit (that has expired but the a new one is good for 3 [We have to
years) to clean up the area. We have emailed and apply for permits
haven’t heard back. This area has been maintained well |to cut this area,
for the past 6 years but over the past year left to over we are thinking
grow severely. If the CDD doesn’t want to be responsible |it would be done
they can sign over the rights to us as the home owner to |once or twice a
obtain the permit and we can maintain the area year.
ourselves. Either way someone please get back with me.
Thank you.
126|2025-05-19|Aquatics Jimenez 9013 Mountain The grass near the pond is extremely high and hasn’t This has been

Magnolia Dr

been cut since last year. It needs to be cut. The
landscaping company Yellowbird has told me they do not
cut that area. Can you please help. It’s almost 3 ft tall.

discussed with
Greg and United.
We have to
apply for permits
to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.

Return to Agenda




Magnolia Park CDD Website Field Service Requests

Entry Date To: Name Address Message Resolution
# Created
125(2025-05-14|Landscape Anello 9107 Mountain This is a complaint. The cutting of grass around the main |This has been
Magnolia Dr pond (aka, Lake Cherrywood) in Mag Park South is discussed with
grossly inconsistent. Most of the pond is cut and Greg and United.
maintained by the CDD. However, the northside shore is [We have to
being inconsistently cut and presently being ignored. apply for permits
Turning the largest pond in Mag Park into an eye sore is |to cut this area,
a crime. The CDD needs to stop cutting around the pond [we are thinking
entirely or keep it maintained uniformly. At the present, |it would be done
it feels like the landscaper is arbitrarily picking winners  |once or twice a
and losers. Ultimately, | think the map is wrong and is year.
being misread.
1242025-05-12|Landscape Janakiram 9023 Mountain 1. Backyard grass has to be mowed This has been
Magnolia Dr 2. Palm tree in the backyard needs to be trimmed and discussed with
coiled plants has to be removed . Greg and United.
We have to
apply for permits
to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.
123|2025-05-12|Landscape Green 9031 MOUNTAIN Following up on our discussion at the meeting. Please This has been

MAGNOLIA DR

confirm if the area by the lake behind my home is
conservation land that can’t be taken care of by the cdd.
Thank you.

discussed with
Greg and United.
We have to
apply for permits
to cut this area,
we are thinking
it would be done
once or twice a
year.

Return to Agenda




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 2
Pending




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 3




Cristi Cochran
ULS

OCTOBER LANDSCAPE AUDIT

Magnolia Park CDD
Monday, October 6, 2025
Prepared For Board Of Supervisors

32 Issues ldentified

Return to Agenda



ISSUE 1
Assigned To ULS
Pinch flowers Magnolia Park Blvd & Progress

ISSUE 2

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors

Dead Sabal at Magnolia Park Blvd entrance to Amenities Center,
will submit quote to flush cut

ISSUE 3
Assigned To ULS
Trim juniper over sidewalk Magnolia Park Blvd near pond 38

ISSUE 4
Assigned To ULS
Pinch flowers Magnolia Park Blvd Amenities Center exit bed

Return to Agenda

ISSUE 5

Assigned To ULS

Remove Brazilian pepper volunteers Magnolia Park Blvd NE bed,
lift oaks



ISSUE 6

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors

Note area maintained by county overgrown NW beds Magnolia
Park Blvd

ISSUE 7

Assigned To ULS

Hand pull weeds and shape Holly trees Magnolia Park & Progress
NE bed

ISSUE 8

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors & Vesta

Magnolia Park West Entrance to be maintained by HOA per
service map

ISSUE 9

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors

Quote was submitted last month to clear overgrowth pond 29
fence

ISSUE 10

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors

ULS will mow and trim this section of Pond 29 on October 6th,
construction work is now completed

Return to Agenda



ISSUE 11

Assigned To ULS

Shape 3 holly trees Fallen Leaf Drive entry and Pond 36 per
maintenance map

ISSUE 12
Assigned To ULS
Tip Podocarpus next visit Fallen Leaf near controller C

ISSUE 13
Assigned To ULS
Remove Virginia creeper vines Fallen Leaf and Hillcroft

ISSUE 14

Assigned To ULS

Hand prune overgrowth through fence behind Hillcroft
Townhomes in October

Return to Agenda

ISSUE 15
Assigned To ULS
Hand prune overgrowth behind Hillcroft Townhomes in October



ISSUE 16

Assigned To ULS

Check for proper irrigation coverage in turf Hillcroft and Fallen
Leaf intersection

ISSUE 17
Assigned To ULS
Shape hedge on Hillcroft in October near pond 37

ISSUE 18
Assigned To ULS
Prune back pond overgrowth back side of pond 37

ISSUE 19
Assigned To ULS
Trim back overgrowth back side of Pond 37 next visit

Return to Agenda

ISSUE 20

Assigned To ULS

Remove palm boots and trim Awabuki hedge in October Fallen
Leaf and Grant Line intersection



ISSUE 21
Assigned To ULS
Lift oaks and shape hedge on fence Fallen Leaf north of pond 40

ISSUE 22
Assigned To ULS
Remove oak volunteer NE Magnolia Park and Grand Harvest bed

ISSUE 23

Assigned To ULS

Check irrigation Magnolia Park and Grand Harvest near pond 10,
turf hot spot

ISSUE 24
Assigned To Board Of Supervisors & Vesta
HOA bed on Magnolia Park median NE has irrigation leak

Return to Agenda

ISSUE 25
Assigned To ULS
Trim back overgrowth NE side Magnolia Park Blvd



ISSUE 26

Assigned To ULS

Prune back overgrowth through fence Magnolia Park and Grand
Harvest entry side next visit

ISSUE 27
Assigned To Vesta
Sidewalk issue Mag Park Blvd

ISSUE 28

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors & Vesta

Magnolia Park East entry to be maintained by HOA per
maintenance map

ISSUE 29
Assigned To ULS
Trim hedges N on Falkenbugh & Aspen Hollow in October

Return to Agenda

ISSUE 30

Assigned To ULS

Trim hedges on S Falkenburgh adjacent to SW entrance of Red
Spruce in October



ISSUE 31

Assigned To Board Of Supervisors & Vesta

HOA entry median bed SW Falkenburgh entrance has fallen
robellini palm at gate

ISSUE 32
Assigned To ULS
Trim hedges in October SE entrance of Falkenburgh and Majestic

Magnolia

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 4




LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of August 2025,
by and between:

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located
in Hillsborough County, Florida, whose mailing address is 250 International
Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (the “District”), and

UNITED LAND SERVICES, with an address of 12276 San Jose Blvd., Suite 747,
Jacksonville, Florida 32223 (“Contractor™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing,
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including landscaping and
irrigation; and

WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide landscape
and irrigation maintenance services for certain lands within and around the District; and

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified, willing and
capable to serve as a landscape and irrigation maintenance contractor and provide such services to
the District.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement,
it is agreed that Contractor is hereby retained, authorized, and instructed by the District to perform
in accordance with the following covenants and conditions, which both the District and Contractor
have agreed upon:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and
by this reference are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement.

2. CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS.

A Scope of Services. Contractor shall provide the services described in the
Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Work?”), for the areas identified in the
Landscape Maintenance Map attached hereto as Exhibit B (“Landscape Maintenance
Area”), both of which are incorporated herein by this reference. Contractor acknowledges
and agrees that the Landscape Maintenance Area may be reasonably adjusted, in the sole
discretion of the District, to accurately reflect areas of the Work actually being performed,
which adjustments shall not result in change in the price for the Work as reflected in
Contractor’s fee summary attached hereto as Exhibit C (“Fee Summary”) and
incorporated herein by this reference. Should any work and/or services be required which
are not specified in this Agreement or any amendments, addenda, or change orders but

Return to Agenda 1



which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of services to the District, such
work or services shall be fully performed by Contractor as if described and delineated in
this Agreement.

B. Acceptance of Site. By executing this Agreement, the Contractor agrees
that the Contractor was able to inspect the site prior to the execution of this Agreement,
and that the Contractor agrees to be responsible for the care, health, maintenance, and
replacement, if necessary, of the existing landscaping, in its current condition, and on an
“as is” basis. The Contractor shall be strictly liable for the decline or death of any plant
material, regardless of whether such decline or death is due to the negligence of the
Contractor or a former contractor, except that the Contractor shall not be responsible for
fire, cold, storm or wind damage, incurable or uncontrollable diseases, or damage due to
vandalism. Upon the occurrence of any such exceptions, Contractor shall immediately
notify the District. Contractor shall replace, at Contractor’s expense, all plant material that,
in the opinion of the District, fails to maintain a healthy, vigorous condition as a result of
the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work specified herein. No changes to the
compensation set forth in this Agreement shall be made based on any claim that the existing
landscaping was not in good condition or that the site was unsuitable for such landscaping.

C. Manner of Contractor’s Performance. The Contractor agrees, as an
independent contractor, to undertake the Work as specified in this Agreement or any Work
Authorization (defined herein) issued in connection with this Agreement. All Work shall
be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and
shall be in accordance with all applicable industry standards, and as required by the Scope
of Services. The performance of all Work and additional services by the Contractor under
this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions
issued by the District.

D. Discipline, Employment, Uniforms. Contractor shall maintain at all times
strict discipline among its employees, subcontractors, agents and assigns and represents to
the District that it has performed all necessary background checks of the same. Contractor
shall not employ for work on the project any person unfit or without sufficient skills to
perform the job for which such person is employed. All laborers and foremen of the
Contractor shall perform all Work on the premises in a uniform to be designed by the
Contractor. No shirtless attire, no torn or tattered attire or slang graphic T-shirts are
permitted. No smoking in or around the buildings will be permitted. Rudeness or
discourteous acts by Contractor employees will not be tolerated. No Contractor solicitation
of any kind is permitted on property.

E. Rain Days. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains (“Rain Days”),
Contractor agrees to reschedule its employees and divide their time accordingly to
complete all scheduled services during the same week as any Rain Days. Contractor shall
provide services on Saturdays, if needed to make up Rain Days, with prior notification to
and approval by the District Representative(s) (defined herein).

F. Protection of Property. Contractor shall use all due care to protect against
any harm to persons or property while performing the Work. If Contractor’s acts or

Return to Agenda 2



omissions result in any damage to property within the District, including but not limited to
damage to landscape lighting and irrigation system components, entry monuments, etc.,
the Contractor shall immediately notify the District and promptly repair all damage —
and/or promptly replace damaged property — to the sole satisfaction of the District. If
Contractor fails to do so, the District reserves the right to make such repairs and Contractor
shall reimburse the costs of such repair or replacement.

G. District Representative; Reporting. The District shall designate in writing
a person to act as the District Representative with respect to the Work to be performed
under this Agreement. The District Representative shall have complete authority to
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the District’s policies and
decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to
Contractor’s services, including the Work.

i The District hereby designates the District Manager or his or her
designee, to act as the District Representative.

ii. The District shall have the right to change its designated
Representative with written notice to Contractor.

iii. Contractor agrees to meet with the District’s representative no less
than bi-weekly to walk the property and discuss conditions, schedules, and items of
concern regarding this Agreement and to provide a monthly written report
summarizing, at minimum, the Work performed during the month, any issues
and/or areas of concern and the schedule of Work to be performed for the upcoming
month.

iv. Contractor agrees to attend the regularly scheduled meetings of the
Board of Supervisors of the District, upon request.

H. Deficiencies. Contractor shall identify and promptly notify the District
Representative of any deficient areas by written communication, including any
explanations of proposed actions to remedy such deficiencies. Upon approval by the
District Representative, the Contractor shall take such actions as are necessary to address
the deficiencies within a reasonable time period specified by the District Representative,
or if no time is specified by the District, within three (3) days and prior to submitting any
invoices to the District. Contractor and the District recognize that time is of the essence
with this Agreement and that the District will suffer financial loss if the deficiencies are
not timely addressed. Should the Contractor fail to address any deficiencies within the
time set forth by the District Representatives, the District shall have the rights to, among
other remedies available at law or in equity, fine the Contractor one hundred dollars
($100.00) per day; to withhold some or all of the Contractor’s compensation under this
Agreement; and to contract with outside sources to perform necessary work with all
charges for such services to be reimbursed by Contractor or deducted from the Contractor’s
compensation.

Return to Agenda 3



l. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall keep, observe, and perform
all requirements of applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, regulations, ordinances,
permits, licenses, or other requirements or approvals. Further, the Contractor shall notify
the District in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to
comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, state,
or federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services
being rendered under this Agreement or any act or omission of the Contractor or any of its
agents, servants, employees, or material men, or appliances, or any other requirements
applicable to provision of services. Additionally, the Contractor shall promptly comply
with any requirement of such governmental entity after receipt of any such notice, order,
request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation.

J. Safety. Contractor shall provide for and oversee all safety orders,
precautions, and programs necessary for the Work. Contractor shall maintain an adequate
safety program to ensure the safety of employees and any other individuals working under
this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with all OSHA standards. Contractor shall take
precautions at all times to protect any persons and property in performing the Work,
utilizing safety equipment including but not limited to bright vests and traffic cones.

K. Environmental Activities. The Contractor agrees to use best management
practices, consistent with presently accepted industry standards, with respect to the storage,
handling and use of chemicals (e.g., fertilizers, pesticides, etc.) and fuels. The Contractor
shall keep all equipment clean (e.g., chemical sprayers) and properly dispose of waste.
Further, the Contractor shall immediately notify the District of any chemical or fuel spills.
The Contractor shall be responsible for any environmental cleanup, replacement of any turf
or plants harmed from chemical burns, and correcting any other harm resulting from the
Work to be performed by Contractor.

L. Payment of Taxes; Procurement of Licenses and Permits. Contractor
shall pay all taxes required by law in connection with the Work, including sales, use, and
similar taxes, and shall secure all licenses and permits necessary for proper completion of
the Work, paying the fees therefore and ascertaining that the permits meet all requirements
of applicable federal, state and local laws or requirements.

M. Subcontractors. Contractor shall not assign any portion of the Work to
subcontractors without prior, written approval of the District. In the event any portions of
the Work are assigned to subcontractors, Contractor shall be responsible for the satisfactory
performance of such work by subcontractors. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to create a contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the District.

N. Independent Contractor Status. In all matters relating to this Agreement,
Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither Contractor nor employees
of Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or
application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or
otherwise. Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or
more of such laws with respect to employees of Contractor, if any, in the performance of
this Agreement. Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation,

Return to Agenda 4



express or implied, on behalf of the District and Contractor shall have no authority to
represent the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set
forth in this Agreement.

3. COMPENSATION; TERM.

A Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from August 1, 2025, to
September 30, 2026, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Thereafter, this Agreement may be renewed in additional, one (1) year terms,
so long as the total compensation under each year and corresponding agreement, including
any applicable work authorizations, amendments and change orders thereto, do not exceed
the bidding threshold for CATEGORY FOUR pursuant to Sections 190.033 and 297.017,
Florida Statutes, and the District’s Rules of Procedure. Renewal must be agreed to by the
parties, in writing, including any increases in price for the renewal year; any renewal or
increase in price without such written agreement by the parties shall be null and void.

B. Compensation. As compensation for the Work, the District agrees to pay
Contractor Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred Seventeen Dollars ($14,917.00) per
month in accordance with the Fee Summary attached hereto as Exhibit C.

C. Additional Work Should the District desire that the Contractor provide
additional work and/or services relating to the District’s landscaping and/or irrigation
systems (e.g., additional services or services for other areas not specified in this
Agreement), such additional work and/or services shall be fully performed by the
Contractor after prior approval of a required Work Authorization. The Contractor agrees
that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any additional work and/or services
unless the District first authorizes the Contractor to perform such additional work and/or
services through an authorized and fully executed Work Authorization, a form of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit D. The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed
additional work and/or services based upon a payment amount derived from the prices set
forth in the Contractor’s Fee Summary attached hereto as Exhibit C. If pricing for any
such additional work or services is not specifically provided for in the exhibits hereto,
Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith on such pricing. Nothing herein shall be
construed to require the District to use the Contractor for any such additional work and/or
services, and the District reserves the right to retain a different contractor to perform any
additional work and/or services.

D. Payments by the District. The Contractor shall maintain records
conforming to usual accounting practices. Further, the Contractor agrees to render monthly
invoices to the District, in writing, which shall be delivered or mailed to the District by
the fifth (5th) day of the next succeeding month. Each monthly invoice shall contain,
at a minimum, the District’s name, the Contractor’s name, the invoice date, an invoice
number, an itemized listing of all costs billed on the invoice with a description of each
sufficient for the District to approve each cost, the time frame within which the services were
provided, and the address or bank information to which payment is to be remitted.
Consistent with Florida’s Prompt Payment Act, section 218.70, et seq., Florida

Return to Agenda 5



Statutes, these monthly invoices are due and payable within forty-five (45) days of receipt
by the District.

E. Payments by Contractor. Subject to the terms herein, Contractor will
promptly pay in cash for all costs of labor, materials, services and equipment used in the
performance of the Work, and upon the request of the District, Contractor will provide
proof of such payment. Contractor agrees that it shall comply with Section 218.735(6),
Florida Statutes, requiring payments to subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers
be made within ten (10) days of receipt of payment from the District. The District may
require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to Contractor, that all
subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, in the
form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those
subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that Contractor
provide an affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall
have the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from
Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of Contractor, as to
services to the District, has been paid and that Contractor has met all of the obligations
with regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments,
Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar
payroll deductions from the wages of employees.

4, TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this
Agreement for any reason by providing ninety (90) days’ written notice of termination to the
District; provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure
any failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement, and regardless of whether any of the procedural steps set forth in Section 2(H)
of this Agreement are taken, the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause by
providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide thirty (30)
days’ written notice of termination without cause. Any termination by the District shall not result
in liability to the District for consequential damages, lost profits, or any other damages or liability.
However, upon any termination of this Agreement by the District, the Contractor shall be entitled
to payment for all Work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this
Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against the Contractor.
On a default by Contractor, the District may elect not to terminate the Agreement, and instead to
demand that Contractor cure any failure constituting default and make appropriate deduction or
revision to the payment to become due to Contractor. Furthermore, the District reserves the right
to pursue any and all available remedies under the law, including but not limited to equitable and
legal remedies and withhold payment pending outcome of such dispute.

5. INSURANCE.

A Insurance Required. Before commencing any Work, the Contractor shall
furnish the District with a Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with the
requirements of this section. No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance
coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice
to the District. Insurance coverage shall be primary and written on forms acceptable to the

Return to Agenda 6



District. Additionally, insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier,
licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s
Insurance Reports rating of A-VII. The procuring of required policies of insurance shall
not be construed to limit Contractor’s liability or to fulfill the indemnification provisions
and requirements of this Agreement.

B. Types of Insurance Coverage Required. Contractor or any subcontractor
performing the work described in this Agreement shall maintain throughout the term of
this Agreement the following insurance:

I Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of
the State of Florida. In the event the Contractor has “leased” employees, the
Contractor or the employee leasing company must provide evidence of a Minimum
Premium Workers’ Compensation policy, along with a Waiver of Subrogation in
favor of the District. All documentation must be provided to the District at the
address listed below. No contractor or sub-contractor operating under a worker’s
compensation exemption shall access or work on the site.

ii. Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000
(one million dollars) per accident or disease.

iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering Contractor’s
legal liability for bodily injuries, property damage, contractual, products and
completed operations, and personal injury, with limits of not less than $2,000,000
per occurrence, and further, including, but not being limited to, Independent
Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property damage in connection with
subcontractors’ operation.

iv. Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not
less than $2,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage,
providing coverage for any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation,
maintenance, or use by Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles,
trailers, or other equipment required to be licensed.

V. Umbrella Excess Liability Insurance to cover any liability in excess
of the limits of coverage already required and with limits of at least $2,000,000 per
occurrence and $2,000,000 on aggregate.

C. Additional Insured. All policies required by this Agreement, with the
exception of Workers® Compensation, or unless specific approval is given by the District,
are to be written on an occurrence basis, and shall name the District, and its supervisors,
officers, staff, agents, employees, and representatives as additional insured (with the
exception of Workers® Compensation insurance) as their interest may appear under this
Agreement. Insurer(s), with the exception of Workers’ Compensation on non-leased
employees, shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District and its
supervisors, officers, staff, agents, employees, and representatives.

Return to Agenda 7



D. Sub-Contractors. Insurance requirements itemized in this Agreement and
required of the Contractor shall be provided on behalf of all sub-contractors, if any and if
approved, to cover their operations performed under this Agreement. The Contractor shall
be held responsible for any modifications, deviations, or omissions in these insurance
requirements as they apply to sub-contractors.

E. Payment of Premiums. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for
payment of all premiums for insurance contributing to the satisfaction of this Agreement
and shall be solely responsible for the payment of all deductibles and retentions to which
such policies are subject, whether or not the District is an insured under the policy.

F. Notice of Claims. Notices of accidents (occurrences) and notices of claims
associated with work being performed under this Agreement shall be provided to the
Contractor’s insurance company and to the District as soon as practicable after notice to
the insured.

G. Failure to Provide Insurance. The District shall retain the right to review,
at any time, coverage, form, and amount of insurance. If the Contractor fails to have
secured and maintained the required insurance, the District has the right (without any
obligation to do so, however), to secure such required insurance in which event, the
Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance to the District and shall furnish,
upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the District’s
obtaining the required insurance. If Contractor fails to pay such cost to the District, the
District may deduct such amount from any payment due the Contractor.

6. INDEMNIFICATION.

A The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, the District, the
District’s Board of Supervisors, District staff and the District’s agents, officers, employees,
contractors, and representatives from and against any and all liability, actions, claims,
demands, loss, damage, injury, or harm of any nature whatsoever, arising from the acts or
omissions of Contractor, or the Contractor’s officers, directors, agents, assigns, employees,
subcontractors, or representatives.

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, back pay, awards, court
costs, mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, paralegal fees (incurred in court, out
of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), or other amounts of any kind.

C. The Contractor agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall serve as or be
construed as a waiver of the District’s or its staff, supervisors or consultant’s limitations on
liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other law. Any subcontractor retained
by the Contractor shall acknowledge the same in writing, and it shall be Contractor’s
responsibility to secure such acknowledgments. Further, nothing herein shall be construed to
limit or restrict the District’s rights against the Contractor under applicable law.

Return to Agenda 8



D. In any and all claims against the District or any of its agents or employees by
any employee of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by
any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification
obligation under this Agreement shall not be limited in any way as to the amount or type of
damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any subcontractor under
Workmen’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

E. It is understood and agreed that this Agreement is not a construction contract
as that term is referenced in Section 725.06, Florida Statutes, and that said statutory provision
does not govern, restrict or control this Agreement

7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A Default and Protection Against Third-party Interference. A default by
either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or
in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief,
and/or specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights
under this Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference
by a third party to this Agreement.

B. Custom and Usage. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the
conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms
of this Agreement, notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in
refraining from so doing or due to oversight; and further, that the failure of the District at
any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this Agreement shall not be construed
as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to the specific conditions and
agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or waived the same.

C. Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties to this
Agreement, except as expressly limited in this Agreement.

D. Assignment. Neither the District nor Contractor may assign this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld. Any purported assignment without such written approval shall be void.

E. Headings for Convenience Only. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

F. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that either the District or Contractor is
required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, paralegal fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

Return to Agenda 9



G. Agreement. This instrument, together with its Exhibits, shall constitute the
final and complete expression of this Agreement between the District and Contractor
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. All prior agreements regarding the matters
provided herein are hereby superseded and replaced by this Agreement. The Exhibits
attached herein are incorporated to the extent that it clarifies certain terms of the
Agreement, and to the extent there are any inconsistencies or conflict between this
instrument and the Exhibits, this instrument shall control.

H. Amendments. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both
the District and Contractor.

l. Authorization. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized
by the appropriate body or official of the District and Contractor, both the District and
Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this
instrument.

J. Notices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered via hand delivery,
mailed by United States certified mail, or by overnight delivery service, to the parties, as
follows:

i If to the District: Magnolia Park
Community Development District
250 International Pkwy., Suite 208
Lake Mary, Florida 32746
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to Contractor: United Land Services
12276 San Jose Blvd., Suite 747
Jacksonville, Florida 32223
Attn:

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at
the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next
business day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise
expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding
business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States
government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel
for Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District and Contractor. Any party or

Return to Agenda 10



other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and
addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing
the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein.

K. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
District and Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to
or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any
person or corporation other than the District and Contractor any right, remedy, or claim
under or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this
Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained
in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District
and Contractor and their respective Representative, successors, and assigns.

L. Controlling Law; Venue. This Agreement and the provisions contained in
this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the
State of Florida. Parties consent to and agree that the exclusive venue for any litigation
arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in
and for Hillsborough County, Florida.

M. Public Records. Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of
any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records,
and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law
in handling such records, including but not limited to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.
Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is
Vesta District Services (“Public Records Custodian). Among other requirements and to
the extent applicable by law, Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required
by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian,
provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected
or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided
in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or
confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed
except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract
term if Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the
District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all
public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all
applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such
public records are transferred by Contractor, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format
that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES,
TO CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT,

Return to Agenda 11



CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT
(321) 263-0132 EXT 742,
PUBLICRECORDS@VESTAPROPERTYSERVICES.COM,
AND 250 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 208, LAKE
MARY, FLORIDA 32746.

N. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or
unenforceable.

0. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the District and Contractor as an arm's length transaction. The District and
Contractor participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of
their respective counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any
provision of this Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and
selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed
against any party.

P. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all
such counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument.

Q. Scrutinized Companies Statement.  Contractor certifies that it is not in
violation of section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and is not prohibited from doing business with
the District under Florida law, including but not limited to Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in Sudan List or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy
Sector List. If Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement, has been placed on the
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or has been engaged in business operations
in Cuba or Syria, or is now or in the future on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel
List, or engaged in a boycott of Israel, the District may immediately terminate this Agreement.

R. E-Verify. The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 2021,
to the extent required by Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United
States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work
authorization status of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this
Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the Contractor has
knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes.

If the Contractor anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for the
Work, Contractor will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an
affidavit from the subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 448.095, Florida
Statutes, and stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract

Return to Agenda 12



with an unauthorized alien. Contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the
duration of the agreement and provide a copy to the District upon request.

In the event that the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has
knowingly violated Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Contractor has otherwise
complied with its obligations hereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor.
The Contractor agrees to immediately terminate the agreement with the subcontractor upon
notice from the District. Further, absent such notification from the District, the Contractor
or any subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is
contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1), Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate
its agreement with such person or entity.

By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer
has terminated a contract with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes,
within the year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement

S. Compliance with section 20.055, Florida Statutes. The Contractor agrees to
comply with section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any
investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate in
all subcontracts the obligation to comply with section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

Return to Agenda 13



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written

above.

ATTEST:

By:

O Secretary

O Assistant Secretary

WITNESS:

By:

Its:

Exhibit A:  Scope of Services

Exhibit B:  Landscape Maintenance Map
Exhibit C:  Fee Summary

Exhibit D:  Form of Work Authorization

Return to Agenda

14

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:

O Chairperson
O Vice Chairperson

UNITED LAND SERVICES

By:

Its:




Exhibit A: Scope of Services

Return to Agenda 15



I he tollowing outline details our proposed scope of services and ofterings to be provided by our service
teams, to ensure we meet the specific needs of your project as governed by our agreement. See attached
schedule for details on frequency of services.

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

- i R I - Tl R e I T S e IR R R

f.  All debris created during maintenance operations will be removed and or blown from adjacent

crirfarae

c. Trees will have trunks cleared of sprouts and elevated to 8 in Green areas and 12’ in Paved areas.
d. Palms under 12’ will have brown fronds removed during detail rotation.

e. Post emergent herbicide will be used in landscape beds to control unwanted weeds and vegetation.

?  Fartilizatinn & Pact Cantral Qarvicac

—- S D T T e metm tttrs mm s — o s —mem . —ee— reer—eem———n —e = i m— e r— s m— = —ea— e

accordance with all State and Federal regulations / guidelines.

e. Ornamental Plants, Trees & Palms will receive a balanced fertilizer at appropriate rates, typically in
spring and fall months.

Return to Agenda



a. dystem will be routinely inspected for operational efficiency and condition.

b. Visual inspection will include controller and electronic components, spray and rotor heads and shrub risers.

~— E e il I it I A i it L T R R e L L A TSR T A R ST ISV R STRTIC

pumps, etc.) will be done after client approval.
5. Seasonal Color (Annuals) Installation

a. [f costis not included in the monthly billing, installation will be done upon authorized approval from Board of
Directors or CAM.

b. Flower type will be selected based on climate, availability at time of install and coordination with adjacent
neighborhood associations to ensure uniformity.

c. Flower beds will be maintained to remove faded or dead plants and to ensure optimal bloom production and

nutrient, fungicide and pesticide based on flower type and Best Management Practices.

e. Standard Annuals to be used for auarterly changeouts. Premium varieties to incur additional cost.

d. Installation method to be determined by contractor, either bagged product or bulk install with blower
truck.

I. Extra Services

a. We will provide extra/special services based on agreement and specifications set forth by the Client

a. Our field personnel will be licensed for all applicable maintenance duties, included any pesticide

applications, as required by law.



Exhibit B: Landscape Maintenance Map

Return to Agenda 16



0 300' 600' N
CDD MAINTAINED POND ] ACCESS EASEMENT
CDD MAINTAINED PROPERTY SCALE: 1" = 300’ %
@ POND NUMBER
WETLAND/CONSERVATION AREA DATE OF EXHIBIT: SEPTEMBER 25, 2024
Date Revision

Return to Agen

PHASE C

CAMDEN FIELD PARKWAY

]

|

)
11111110
]

L0

L]

O

!7
I

|

I

“
=
r—
\‘
I

I

7

&

H 0T

=

]

rHi

jum

i

CHATTERTON WAY'

TE SAN w”%RLn\(‘ COUR

L]

S FALKENBURG ROAD > <l

1)

7 ke | OIS T
L R - - == === -
— - | e |t et
| ] FLORENCE VILLA COURT 2 - " : | : THITT L’_E
— T — ) o oE ) 3
% | ) Ow! il £ " : PHASE B
I = ! —= | - ) =
i : I e
il i i
oy -
2 e
— "HARVEST CREEK ! E NE PHASE E

- TOWNHOMES e < s
| TRasH
7/ | compacTor

= gRANT HARVEST COU/RT

N ﬁ - = r—" — 1 — = 7
i -t 4 FALLEN LEAF DRIVE
- 36/
l NOT
} INCLUDED
. I

b
0 =
=
sl
i ooy

-
=
=1
n| ,,z
R — =
o

@

B

il

MHHHL
a=)

ﬂ

PHASEF | \

O

7
1
\
\
\
| [
\ |

=
\E

MAGNOLIA PARK BOULEVARD

HRRENN L
| LT : "sranooN
HERERER 7  oeveLopmENT
‘ ‘ ‘I \ :‘ : | BY OTHERS
DS S

ERENRENE Y
ARERNANRNAN il e
% FUTURE @\ ﬂ <
2| DEVELOPMENT S N
AN BY OTHERS \ STATION :
SE PHASES ! E’ ," —————— 2\ SE AMENITY CENTER
Cl1 & C2 [/ \ @
]

N N
A\
A\
NG
s g e
| l 1 NS
[ ] v, N\

SWEET BIRCH DRIVE
AT

\‘HHHHHHH‘ H NHW

T N
UIIJEL 7~ A

IR %%
1 - SE PH&S@?%%

EEEE |

Z

D\

R % SE PHASE A2

10

—

il
=

Q@

Q

PHASE G

)

¢
J

N

1
[]
[
[
\\
\\
[]
[]
L]
S
\\%%
@
)
L

e
=

[
i

"~ ] C_

]
UTT
H
n
n
i

214
Clie—

M
(w]
Dt
Bejal

i
Q]
>
<
m

E

J*

HIJ
—m=)

/ (117
/ e al

Wi
)
]

T
) (I
|
U
((ik
|

i
-
[
i

|
|
|
|
|
|
[
=

—

T
U
I b
i )
= )|k
——=—) u
]

W=y — = —=
[ (T H 1]

—— e —=
SREa|ER=NaEs

T B [T e T
S . — =

NI

— = — =
L L 1

T
2

LI

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO FALKENBURG ROAD

PARCEL 2 | PARCEL 3 @

N
il
Il
i |
T
I
=
il

1]
il

- !j HiF ‘HL
I m—m
(== ——=)

|

—=——SE PHASE D

|
L]

)
!

LD

MAGNOLIA PARK BOULEVARD

LT |
L

]

I

Vs
p—

e

T

L

|

AR

TURNSTONE SHORE LANE
MAJESTIC MAGNOLIA PLACE : / \ J 2 O )

AN—

—

K‘:
—=r=d

.

>

~

\SE PHASE E

[ 1

Map.dwg

Map\Maintenance

U:\ 238200376\ Projects\Maintenance

MAGNOLIA PARK @ Stantec

CDD MAINTENANCE EXHIBIT




Exhibit C: Fee Summary

Return to Agenda

17



Exhibit B:Your Investment

Contract Maintenance Monthly Yearly
Core Maintenance- (42) $13,231 $ 158,772
Includes Mowing, Edging, Weed-eating, Debris Blowing, Shrub Pruning,

Tree Pruning (up to |12 ft.), Rejuvenation Pruning (native grass), Weeding

and Cleanup.

Irrigation Inspections- (12) $ 582 $ 6,984
Includes Adjusting Heads and Nozzles. Seasonal Clock Adjustments.

Monthly Reports

Fertilization & Chemical Treatments $715 $ 8,580
Includes Turf (4) and Shrub (2) Fertilization & Pest Control Applications.

Palm Pruning- (1) $ 389 $ 4,668
Includes Trimming of all palm trees on property. Including removal of dead or dying

fronds and removal of all loose boots.

Total for Landscape Maintenance $ 14,917 $ 179,004
Additional Services Quantity Price
Mulch TBD $TBD
Annuals TBD $TBD

Return to Agenda



Exhibit D: Form of Work Authorization

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER
FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES

THISWORK AUTHORIZATION (“Work Authorization™), dated , 202__, authorizes
certain work in accordance with that certain Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Agreement, effective
, 2024 (the “Agreement™), by and between:

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located in Hillsborough County,
Florida (the “District”), and

UNITED LAND SERVICES, with an address of 12276 San Jose Blvd., Suite 747, Jacksonville, Florida
32223 (“Contractor”).

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. in addition to the services described in the Agreement and any
exhibits, amendments and addenda thereto, Contractor shall provide additional services,
as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by reference, all in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement (collectively, the “Additional Services”). To the extent that the terms of Exhibit A conflict with terms
of this Work Authorization or the Agreement, the Work Authorization and the Agreement shall control.

SECTION 2. COMPENSATION. As compensation for the Additional Services, the District agrees to pay
Contractor Dollars ($ ). Contractor shall invoice the
District for Additional Services upon completion of the same and the District shall pay Contractor in accordance with
the terms of the Agreement.

SECTION 3. ACCEPTANCE. Acceptance of this Work Authorization authorizes Contractor to complete
the Additional Services as outlined above and is indicated by the signature of the authorized representative of the
District and Contractor. Contractor shall commence the aforesaid Additional Services upon the full execution of this
Work Authorization and shall perform the same in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, which,
except to the extent expressly altered or changed in this Work Authorization, remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written above.

ATTEST: MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By: By:

O Secretary O Chairperson

O Assistant Secretary O Vice Chairperson
WITNESS: UNITED LAND SERVICES
By: By:

Its: Its:

Exhibit A Proposal for Additional Services

Return to Agenda

18



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXRHIBIT 5




2025 Hurricane & Storm Cleanup Rates

Dear Valued Customer”

In preparation for hurricane season and the potential for storm damage at your property we
would like to inform you of our processes and pricing in regards to storm cleanup. In the event
that our region is impacted by a storm, United Land Services is able and ready to handle any
and all necessary storm cleanup related work. We address the cleanup & remediation process

in a three phase approach:

Phase 1
Phase 1 to begin immediately following the
storm once safe and legal for our team to do so
at labor prices listed. Main goal is to create as
safe an environment as possible.
Clear main entrances of any obstructions inhib-
iting traffic.
Clear secondary roadways of any obstructions
inhibiting traffic.
Clear parking areas located at common areas
and common area structures.
Clear sidewalks, walking paths and thorough-
fares in common areas.

Phase 2
Assessment of total clean-up needed and asso-
ciated total costs of Phases 1-3.
Removal of any debris generated and stock-
piled from Phase 1 upon approval.
Clearing and removal of debris from common
area parks, dog parks and playgrounds upon
approval.

Phase 3
Clear and remove debris from turf and land-
scape areas.
Post storm tree work to remove "hangers",
hazard wood and damaged and hazardous
trees remaining.

Return to Agenda

Rates
Supervisor-$100/hr
Crew Leader-$80/hr
Laborer-$70/hr

Debris Removal-$750+ (TBD based on
amount and removal method)

Equipment (Lifts, trucks, chippers, loaders,
skid steer, etc.)-$ TBD based on require-

ments
* All rates charged portal to portal
Property Info
Property

Pre Approval Amount$

Name (Primary)

Phone (Primary)

Email (Primary)

Name (Alternate)

Phone (Alternate)

Email (Alternate)




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT ©




Proposal #182763

Date: 8/12/2025
PO #

Property:

Heath Beckett

Vesta Properties Magnolia Park CDD
250 International Parkway 5790 Magnolia Park Blvd.
Suite 208 Riverview, FL 33578

Lake Mary, FL 32746

2025 Pond 19 Clean Up

One Time clean of Pond 19 at request of residents on property, includes mowing turf where able, string
trim pond bank

Please note per maintenance Map this is deemed wetland and not part of contract.

Services Billed Upon Completion

Description of Services Total cost
Property Improvements $3,628.13
By By
Cristi Cochran
Date 8/12/2025 Date
United Land Services Magnolia Park CDD
United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 1

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXRHIBIT 7




Proposal #187403

Date: 9/6/2025
PO #

Magnolia Park CDD
5790 Magnolia Park Blvd.
Riverview, FL 33578

2025 Remove Vegetation Along Fence Pond 29

Provide Labor To Cut Down Vegetation Along Fence, Haul Debris, Estimate 4 Days Labor

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 1

Return to Agenda



United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 2

Return to Agenda



United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 3

Return to Agenda



Services Billed Upon Completion

Description of Services Total cost

Property Improvements $8,157.33

By By

Cristi Cochran

Date 9/6/2025 Date
United Land Services Magnolia Park CDD
United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 4

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 8




Proposal #186703

Date: 9/3/2025
PO #

Property:

Magnolia Park CDD
5790 Magnolia Park Blvd.
Riverview, FL 33578

2025 Clear Falkenburg Fenceline

Provide Labor and Equipment to Clear Overgrowth on Fence, Remove Debris, Estimate 2 Days

Services Billed Upon Completion

Description of Services Total cost

Property Improvements $9,333.33

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 1

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 9




Proposal #190888

Date: 9/26/2025
PO #

Property:

Magnolia Park CDD
5790 Magnolia Park Blvd.
Riverview, FL 33578

2025 September Irrigation Repairs

Provide Labor and Material To Repair Irrigation Issues Found During September 24 Inspection:

Clock F: Replace Stuck Valve Zone 2, Track Valves With Faults Zones 5, 6, 7, 8

Clock E: Raise 8 Heads Zones 23 & 3 Heads Zone 26 For Better Coverage

Clock G: Track Valves Zones 1, 4, 5, 6

Clock B: All Zones Good

Clock A: Pump Is Not Working & Electrician Is Required to Assess Breaker Melted To Terminals
o Replace Valve Not Responding to Controller Zone 11 Turned on Manually

e Clock C: Replace 6" Spray Zones 13, 16; Repair Lateral Line Break Zone 17
e Clock D: Raise Turf Spray Zone 22

Services Billed Upon Completion

Description of Services Total cost
Irrigation Repair $1,914.10
By By
Cristi Cochran
Date 9/26/2025 Date
United Land Services Magnolia Park CDD
United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 1/3

Return to Agenda



Services

Irrigation Repair

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 2/3

Return to Agenda



Terms & Conditions

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 3/3

Return to Agenda






























eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 10




Proposal #190885

Date: 9/26/2025
PO #

Property:

Magnolia Park CDD
5790 Magnolia Park Blvd.
Riverview, FL 33578

2025 Install Exposed 2 Wire Into Conduit - Clock F

Provide Labor and Material to Trench and Install Exposed 2 Wire Into Conduit Controller F Near 8524
Bassett Court

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 1/5

Return to Agenda



United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 2/5

Return to Agenda



Services Billed Upon Completion

Description of Services Total cost

Irrigation Repair $1,289.10

By By

Cristi Cochran

Date 9/26/2025 Date
United Land Services Magnolia Park CDD
United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 3/5

Return to Agenda



Services

Irrigation Repair

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 4/5

Return to Agenda



Terms & Conditions

United Land Services | 12276 San Jose Blvd. | Jacksonville, FL 32223 Page 5/5

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 11




Field Operations Report
for
Magnolia Park
Community Development
District
October 2025

eeeeeeeeeeeeee



Magnolia Park

e Pond Vendor.

* Premier Lakes is scheduled to start.
* | have been in communication with Alex on
some of the ponds that need attention asap.
* Fence Work.
* | walked this area with Rafeal and noticed
that there are still 2 small sections up due to
a large beehive on it.
* | have reached out to a beekeeper to get
this removed.
* Meeting with Rafeal.
 Walked/Drove around the property to look at
areas that we can work on improving.
* Cut back areas
e Sprinkler timing.
* Trees that needed trimming.
* Fence repairs.
* Total of 5 areas that still need
repair.

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

* United.
* Meeting scheduled to go over the proper improvement
areas.

* Any areas that need to be mowed.

* Areas where we can cut back.
 Areas where trees need to be trimmed.
* Irrigation issues.

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 35

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 37

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 32

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 40 Area

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park Trees growing on
Pond 40 residents’ property.

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 20 — Needs work.

Return to Agenda



Cut back area near MngOliG Park Conservation
Pond 37. Area L

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Mag Park South Entrance Pond 22 Pond 21

Return to Agenda



Magnolia Park

Pond 18 Left Pond 18 Right Pond 24

Return to Agenda



Machforms

Date Created

To:

Message

Response

2025-09-26 10:21:18

2025-09-24 09:50:52

2025-09-18 19:15:38

2025-09-1512:53:24

Return to Agenda

Field Manager

Field Manager

Landscape

Landscape

Good morning,

I would like to request lake management and maintenance for the inner pond located
behind the residence at 9213 Mountain Magnolia Dr. Over the past three years, this
pond has not been maintained, and I've noticed that grass and vegetation are rapidly
growing and now beginning to take over nearly half of the water area.

Could you please advise on the process and timeline for addressing this issue, along
with any planned solutions?

Thank you for your attention to this matter. | look forward to your response.

Meed to know what will be done to this WOODEN AREA located in the back of my
home. When | purchased my home in December 2009, there was a POND behind my
home. Thatis one of the reasons | choose to purchase this home. | never would
imagine years later my backyard view is a wooden area. What will be done to rectify
this problem? There are numerous wildlife in those woods.

lwanted to address the area behind the West Townhomes. The area separating the
townhomes from Asbury is currently in poor condition, with patchy grass and
overgrown, disordered bushes that detract from the overall appearance. The bushes
are also patchy and make the area untidy in appearance due to the lack of upkeep. |
along with my neighbors would be very appreciative of any upkeep or updates you
can provide.

There are weeds that are starting to grow into trees, and vines that are taking over the
landscaped areas along the entrance of the south gates. | am happy to meet up with
someone to show them.

At thr Progress gate- its across from the gate code box.

The Falkenburg gate- you can see them from the backside of the fence more easily.
These have been ignored and now its starting to look like big bushes/trees and they
are not supposed to be there

We are currently
trying to get
approval to maintain
more of this area.

This is on our
maintenance cycle
to have cut back.

This was tabled at
the last boar
meeting.

We are currently
trying to get
approval to maintain
more of this area.



2025-09-12 09:44:10

2025-09-10 19:14:55

2025-03-10 18:28:27

2025-09-10 11:07:23

2025-03-04 13:44:34

2025-08-13 12:14:38

Return to Agenda

Field Manager

Landscape

Landscape

Field Manager

Aguatics

Landscape

Machforms

Iwould like to get my back fence line maintained since it is on the map but hasn't
been maintained in years

Part of our backyard has not being mowed the past three weeks. | believe there is
some confusion between United and Yellowhbird on who's responsibility this is but
this overgrowth is unacceptable. A representative from Yellowbird is arguing with me
that it is not their responsibility but it needs to be addressed. Can someone please
assist?

Grass around pond and entire fence perimeter is over a foot high. | will wait 5
business days before submitting another complaint to the county code enforcement
for failure to maintain lawn care.

The vegetation growth around the pond behind our house has not been maintained
properly. The growth is out of control, Mo weed whacking has taken place in weeks,
and the last time they did weed whack they only did it behind the homes not the
complete pond perimeter. If | could send pictures | would but | do not see anywhere
on here to do that.

The rear left corner of pond #9 (Lake Cherrywood) is severely overgrown and the
water is completely covered in invasive vegetation. This has been reported several
times since June.

Last year the hurricanes knocked over a couple trees that are in the CDD property into
my yard. The crew came out and trimmed the trees but left the stumps. They told me
they would be back soon to grind the stumps since they didn't have the equipment
with them. It has almost been a full year and no stumps have been removed. Grass is
growing over them and the they cause water to pool on my property when it rains.
When will someone be out to take care of this?

| have reached out
to landscaping to
look at this area

| have reached out
to landscaping to
look at this arae.

We are waiting for
approval to get this
work done.

| have reached out
to landscaping to
look at this area

| have reached out
to landscaping to
look at this area

We are waiting for
approval to replace
all the fallen tress
from the hurrcane.




THANK YOU

Michael Bush

Mbush@VESTAPROPERTSERVICES.COM

Return to Agenda



eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 12




Magnolia Park Community Development District

c/o Vesta District Services
250 International Parkway Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL 32746
Phone: 321-263-0132

October 1, 2025

Via UPS and Email

Solitude Lake Management, LLC
Attn: Trina Duncan

5869 Enterprise Parkway

Fort Myers, Florida 33905

Email: tduncan@solitudelake.com

Re:  Magnolia Park Community Development District (“District”)
Notice of Termination — Agreement for Aquatic Maintenance Services and
Agreement for Mitigation Monitoring and Maintenance Services

Dear Ms. Duncan:

Pursuant to Sections 20 of the Agreement for Aquatic Maintenance Services and the
Agreement for Mitigation Monitoring and Maintenance Services, both dated June 1, 2023 (the
“Agreements”), and in accordance with the decision made by the Board of Supervisors of the
District, please accept this 30-day written notice of termination of the Agreements, without cause.
Services being provided pursuant to the Agreements shall cease October 31, 2025. Please note that
the District expects your company to provide services in accordance with the terms of the
Agreements through October 31, 2025.

The District appreciates the services your company has provided and wishes you the best.
Should you have any questions, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 ext. 398 or
bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com.

Sincerely,

Barry Jeskewich
District Manager

cC: Tucker F. Mackie, District Counsel
Chair, Board of Supervisors

Return to Agenda



AGREEMENT FOR AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES BETWEEN MAGNOLIA PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND PREMIER LAKES, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1%t day of October, 2025, by and
between:

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated
in Hillsborough County, Florida, and having a mailing address of 250 International
Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (the “District”); and

PREMIER LAKES, INC., a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 1936 Bruce B
Downs Blvd., Suite 308, Wesley Chapel, Florida 33544 (the “Contractor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance adopted by the County Commission
of Hillsborough County, Florida, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating
and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including but not limited to hardscape, landscape, and
other infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide the labor,
services and materials for aquatic maintenance services to the stormwater ponds located within
the District, as identified on the maintenance area map attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is capable of providing such services to the District;
and

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor (collectively, the “Parties”) warrant and agree that
they have all right, power, and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. ReciTALs. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES.

Return to Agenda



. AQuATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The Contractor agrees to provide the labor, services

and materials for aquatic maintenance services to the stormwater pond areas as
more specifically identified in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide the following
services each month (“Services”):

. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by

which its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the
District and in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall use industry best
practices and procedures when carrying out the Services. Any additional
compensation for additional duties shall be paid only as negotiated between the
Parties and upon the written authorization of the District.

This Agreement grants to Contractor this right to enter, and reasonable ingress
and egress to the District property for purposes described in this Agreement, and
Contractor hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and
regulations affecting the provisions of the Services.

. The Contractor shall report directly to the District’s Designee who shall be the

District Manager. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the
District, its residents and its landowners from damage and shall follow and be
responsible for the completion of the Services. Contractor agrees to repair any
damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four (24)
hours.

The Contractor agrees to attend regularly scheduled meetings of the District’s
Board of Supervisors, either in-person or remotely.

SECTION 3. ComPENSATION; TERM. In exchange for providing the Services, the District
shall pay the Contractor an amount of Three One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($3,120.00) per
month for a not-to-exceed amount of Thirty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Forty Dollars
($37,440.00) annually. If the District should desire additional work or services not provided in
this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional
work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to a work order,
addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement, as set forth in more detail herein.

Return to Agenda

A. Assoon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall

invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other
sums due to the Contractor by the fifth (5th) day of the next succeeding month.
The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice
date. The Contractor may cease performing Services under this Agreement if any
payment due hereunder is not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each
monthly invoice will include such supporting information as the District may
reasonably require the Contractor to provide.



B.

Work shall commence on November 1, 2025, and end October 31, 2026. This
Agreement shall automatically renew for one-year terms, under the same terms,
specifications, and conditions as set forth by this Agreement, unless terminated
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges that the
prices of this Agreement are firm and that the Contractor may change the prices
only with the District’s consent.

The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the
Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid
and require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or
laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to
the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to
require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the
Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the
Contractor, as to services to the District, has been paid and that the Contractor
has met all of the obligations with regard to the withholding and payment of taxes,
Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment
Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of
employees.

SECTION 4. WARRANTY AND COVENANT.

Return to Agenda

A.

Execution of this Agreement by Contractor is a representation that Contractor
has visited the District property where the Services are to be performed and
become familiar with the location and any special conditions under which the
Services are to be performed. Contractor represents and warrants that its
investigation of the District property was performed in detail and was sufficient
to disclose the condition of the District property and all improvements thereon,
and the conditions under which the Services are to be performed.

Contractor warrants to District that all materials and equipment furnished under
this Agreement will be of good quality and new, that the Services and materials
will be free from faults and defects not inherent in the quality required or
permitted, and that the Services will conform with the requirements of this
Agreement. Services not conforming to these requirements, including
substitutions not properly approved and authorized, may be considered
defective. If required by the District’'s Engineer, Contractor shall furnish
satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

Contractor hereby grants to District (or its assignee), its warranty of the quality
and adequacy of all the Services, including, without limitation, all labor,
materials, and equipment provided by Contractor and its subcontractors of all
tiers in connection with the Services. Neither final acceptance of the Services,

3



nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of the Agreement shall relieve
Contractor of responsibility for defective or deficient materials or Services. If
any of the Services are found to be defective, deficient or not in accordance with
the Agreement, Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written
notice from the District and shall correct and pay for any other damage resulting
there from to District property or the property of landowners within the District.
Upon completion of the Services, Contractor shall assign or cause to be assigned
to District all manufacturers’ and other warranties with respect to all Services.

Contractor shall, at its expense, give all necessary notices and cause all Services
done and materials and equipment furnished pursuant to this Agreement to
comply strictly with all applicable federal, state, county municipal, building and
zoning, land use, environmental, public safety, non-discrimination and disability
accessibility laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, including, without
limitation, all professional registration (both corporate and individual) for all
required basic disciplines that it shall perform (hereinafter referred to
collectively as “Legal Requirements”). Further, Contractor covenants and
warrants that it shall observe and comply strictly with all Legal Requirements in
connection with the performance of the Services or otherwise. Contractor shall
take and observe all necessary measures and precautions for the safety and
protection of all property and persons in connection with the performance of
the Services, including, without limitation, complying with all laws, ordinances
and safety regulations. Contractor shall be responsible to District for the acts
and omissions of Contractor’s employees, subcontractors and their agents and
employees and other persons performing portions of the Services under a
contract with Contractor.

Contractor hereby covenants to the District that it shall perform the Services: (i)
in a good and workmanlike manner, using its best skill and judgment and in
accordance with generally accepted professional and design standards and
practices for projects of similar design and complexity as the development
occurring within the District; (ii) in compliance with all Legal Requirements and
this Agreement; and (iii) in an expeditious and economical manner consistent
with the best interest of the District. Contractor hereby covenants to the District
that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use nor infringe any
patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietary interest
claimed or held by any person or business entity absent prior written consent
from the District

SECTION 5. CARE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the
property of District, its residents and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any
damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours and at the
sole expense of Contractor.

Return to Agenda



SECTION 6. INSURANCE.

A. The Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance during the performance

of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than the
following:

Workers Compensation Statutory

General Liability (including Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury
and property damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation, if any.)

Bodily Injury (including contractual) $2,000,000
Property Damage (including contractual) $2,000,000
Employer’s Liability $1,000,000

Automobile Liability (if applicable)
Bodily Injury and Property Damage $2,000,000

B. Contract shall name the District, its agents, staff, consultants and supervisors, as

additional insureds. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of
Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be
acceptable to the District unless it provides that any change or termination within
the policy periods of the insurance coverages, as certified, shall not be effective
without prior written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a
reputable insurance carrier, authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida,
and such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII.

If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the
District has the right (without any obligation to do so, however), to secure such
required insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that required
insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in
connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance.

SECTION 7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times the
relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of
employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents,
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The Parties acknowledge
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and
pay all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of the
District and at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control.

Return to Agenda

5



In particular, the District will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s payments;
ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor’s behalf; iii)
Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability insurance
contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf
of Contractor.

SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS. The Contractor shall keep,
observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules,
regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5)
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or
an alleged violation, made by any local, state, or federal governmental body or agency or
subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any
action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with
respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other
requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such
agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or
report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, effective
immediately upon the giving of notice of termination.

SECTION 9. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default by
either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in
equity, which may include, but is not limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific
performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement
against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the
District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

SECTION 10.  ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either Party is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonably attorney’s fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

SEcTioN11.  AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the
District and the Contractor.

SECTION 12.  AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized
by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the
Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the
Contractor have full powers and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this
Agreement.

Return to Agenda



SECTION 13. Norices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to the District: Magnolia Park Community Development District
250 International Parkway, Suite 208
Lake Mary, Florida 32746
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 W. College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to the Contractor: Premier Lakes, Inc.
1936 Bruce B Downs Blvd., Suite 308
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33544
Attention: Alex Kurth

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon
actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business
day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays,
Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded
as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on
behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be
sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to
which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties
and addressees set forth herein.

SECTION 14.  ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the District and the Contractor as an arm’s length transaction. Both Parties participated
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and had the opportunity to seek advice or received the
advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this
Agreement, both Parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and
the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against either the District or the
Contractor.

SECTION 15.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation

Return to Agenda



other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective
representatives, successors, and assigns.

SECTION 16.  ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the
other.

SECTION 17.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement
shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

SECTION 18. INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its
officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands,
costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the
District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of,
wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be performed by
Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with this
Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement
proceedings with respect thereto. Additionally, nothing in this Agreement
requires Contractor to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault
if the District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the
District and Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall
indemnify the District for any and all percentage of fault attributable to
Contractor for claims against the District, regardless whether the District is
adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs,
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees,
paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy
proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments
against the District.

SECTION 19.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed as a waiver of immunity or limited of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited
waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature
in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to

8

Return to Agenda



the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be
barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 20.  TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this
Agreement for cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the District;
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any
failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this
Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor.
The District shall provide ten (10) days written notice of termination without cause. Upon any
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off
sets the District may have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination.

SECTION21.  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings,
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation,
inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant
to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when
developed and shall be considered work for hire.

SECTION 22.  PusLIC RECORDS. The Contractor understands and agrees that all documents
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records,
and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in
handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Barry Jeskewich
(“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law,
the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the
service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested
public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at
a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that
public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term
and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public
Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District,
at no cost, all public recordsin Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet
all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such
public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.
All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible
with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT,

Return to Agenda



CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (321) 263-0132
EXT. 398, BJESKEWICH@VESTAPROPERTYSERVICES.COM OR AT 250
INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 208, LAKE MARY, FLORIDA 32746.

SECTION 23.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 24.  HEeADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 25.  GOVERNING LANGUAGE. For all purposes, this Agreement shall be the
governing document and understanding of the parties. In the event of any conflict between this
Agreement and any other document, this Agreement shall govern and control.

SECTION 26.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

SECTION27.  E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS. The Contractor shall comply with and perform all
applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by
Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees.
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes. By entering into
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract
with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately
preceding the date of this Agreement.

SECTION 28. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES. The Contractor agrees to
comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any
investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant to such section and to incorporate
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 29. STATEMENT REGARDING CHAPTER 287 REQUIREMENTS. The Contractor
acknowledges that, in addition to all Laws and Regulations that apply to this Agreement, the
following provisions of Florida law (“Public Integrity Laws”) apply to this Agreement:

A. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation of
the right to transact business with public entities;
B. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of the

10

Return to Agenda



right to transact business with public entities;

C. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with
scrutinized companies;

D. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or revocation
of the right to transact business with public entities; denial of economic benefits;
and

E. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign
countries of concern prohibited.

The Contractor acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that meet
certain criteria from bidding on or entering into or renewing a contract with governmental
entities, including with the District (“Prohibited Criteria”).

The Contractor acknowledges that the District may terminate this Agreement if the
Contractor is found to have met the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public Integrity Laws.

The Contractor certifies that in entering into this Agreement, neither it nor any of its
officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are
active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity, meets any of the Prohibited
Criteria, and in the event such status changes, the Contractor shall immediately notify the
District. By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that any renewal or extension of
this Agreement shall be deemed a recertification of such status.

SEcTION 30. ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT. The Contractor does not use coercion
for labor or services as defined in Section 787.06, Florida Statutes, and the Contractor has
complied, and agrees to comply, with the provisions of Section 787.06, Florida Statutes.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]

11

Return to Agenda



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year
first written above.
Attest: MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors

Witness: PREMIER LAKES, INC.

By: AleX Ku rth

Signature of Witness
Print Name: Alex Kurth

Title: President

Exhibit A: Map of Aquatic Maintenance Areas
Exhibit B: Schedule of Services

12

Return to Agenda



Exhibit A
Map of Maintenance Areas

13

Return to Agenda



Exhibit B
Schedule of Services

14

Return to Agenda



15



16



17



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND
PREMIER LAKES, INC., FOR MITIGATION MONITORING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 1st day of
October 2025, by and between:

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated
in Hillsborough County, Florida, and having a mailing address of 250 International
Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (the “District”); and

PREMIER LAKES, INC., a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 1936 Bruce B
Downs Blvd., Suite 308, Wesley Chapel, Florida 33544 (the “Contractor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the
purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure
improvements; and

WHEREAS, the District owns and maintains certain wetlands within its boundaries identified
on the attached Exhibit A (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide quarterly
wetland mitigation monitoring and maintenance services described herein and in the attached
Exhibit B, within the Property (collectively, the “Services”); and

WHEREAS, the Contractor represents that it is qualified, willing and able to provide the
Services and desires to contract with the District to do so in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements and mutual covenants
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct
and by this reference are incorporated as a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities
of the Contractor are to furnish all necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools, expertise and
supplies and perform all tasks necessary for the provision of wetland mitigation monitoring and
maintenance services within the Property, as described herein and in the attached Exhibit B.

SECTION 3. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE. The Contractor agrees, as an
independent contractor, to undertake and/or perform the Services as are specified in this

Return to Agenda



Agreement or any addendum executed by the parties or in any authorized written work order by
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor. All work
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and
shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services by the
Contractor under this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions issued by the District.

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its
duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District and in
accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall use industry best practices and
procedures when carrying out the Services.

B. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this
Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations affecting the
provision of the Services.

C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s representative with
respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The District’s
representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive
information, interpret and define the District’s policies and decisions with respect to
materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to the Contractor’s services.

1. The District hereby designates its District Manager to act as its representative.

2. If requested by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet with the
District’s representative to discuss conditions, schedules, and items of concern
regarding this Agreement.

D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the Property from damage and shall follow
and be responsible for the completion of the Services set forth in Exhibit B. Contractor
agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and work within
twenty-four (24) hours.

E. The Contractor agrees to attend regularly scheduled meetings of the District’s Board of
Supervisors, either in-person or remotely.

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION.

A. In exchange for providing the Services pertaining to wetland monitoring, the District shall
pay the Contractor an amount of Eight Hundred Dollars ($800.00) per wetland
monitoring event for a not-to-exceed amount of One Thousand Six Hundred Dollars
($1,600.00) annually. In exchange for providing the Services pertaining to wetland
maintenance, the District shall pay the Contractor a one-time start-up fee of Two
Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($2,800.00), due upon execution of this Agreement, and

Return to Agenda



an amount of One Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($1,200.00) quarterly (May, August,
November and February) for a not-to-exceed amount of Four Thousand Eight Hundred
Dollars ($4,800.00) annually. The Contractor shall invoice the District upon completion of
each monitoring or maintenance event, and the District shall provide payment within
thirty (30) days of receipt of such an invoice.

B. If the District should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit B, the
Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or
services. Upon successful negotiations, the parties shall agree in writing to a work order,
addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The Contractor shall be
compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount
acceptable to the parties and agreed to in writing. No additional services shall be provided
by the Contractor unless done at the direction of the District.

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the
Contractor that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and
require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted
to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further
require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said
indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition
precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory
to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the District, has
been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Worker’s Compensation,
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the
wages of employees. Any subcontractors proposed to be used by Contractor are subject
to approval by the District, which approval may be withheld in the District’s sole
discretion.

SECTION 5. INSURANCE.

A. The Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance during the performance of
the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than the following:

Workers Compensation statutory
General Liability

Bodily Injury (including contractual) $1,000,000
Property Damage (including contractual) $1,000,000

Automobile Liability (if applicable)
Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000,000

B. The District, its agents, staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as an additional

Return to Agenda



insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance
evidencing compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the
District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the
insurance coverages, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior
written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance
carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a
Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII.

C. Ifthe Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the District
has the right (without any obligation to do so, however), to secure such required
insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and
shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the
District’s obtaining the required insurance.

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times the
relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of
employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents,
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The parties acknowledge
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and
pay all of Contractor’s employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of the
District and at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control.

In particular, the District will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s
payments; ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor’s
behalf; iii) Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability
insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers’ compensation insurance
on behalf of Contractor.

SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS. The Contractor shall keep,
observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules,
regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5)
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or
an alleged violation, made by any local, state, or federal governmental body or agency or
subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any
action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with
respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other
requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such
agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or
report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, effective
immediately upon the giving of notice of termination.

Return to Agenda



SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default by
either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in
equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific
performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement
against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the
District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

SECTION 9. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either party is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the
District and the Contractor.

SECTION 11.  AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized
by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the
Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this
Agreement.

SECTION 12. Norices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows:

A. If to the District: Magnolia Park Community Development District
250 International Parkway, Suite 208
Lake Mary, Florida 32746
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 W. College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to the Contractor: Premier Lakes, Inc.
1936 Bruce B Downs Blvd., Suite 308
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33544
Attention: Alex Kurth

Return to Agenda



Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at
the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business
day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver
Notice on behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices
are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to
the parties and addressees set forth herein.

SECTION 13.  ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the District and the Contractor as an arm’s length transaction. Both parties participated
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties are
deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not
be interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor.

SECTION 14.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation
other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective
representatives, successors, and assigns.

SECTION 15.  ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the
other.

SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Venue shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers,
agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from any
and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages,
penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or
otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be

Return to Agenda



performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with
this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement
proceedings with respect thereto. Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires
Contractor to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the District is
adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and Contractor
as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for any and all
percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, regardless
whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments,
damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, arbitration and/or
mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees (incurred in court, out
of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages,
penalties, fines, or judgments against the District.

SECTION 18.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited
waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature
in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be
barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

SecTion 19.  ErfecTiVE DATE. This Agreement is effective as of the date first written
above and shall remain in effect until October 31, 2026.

SECTION20.  TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this
Agreement for cause by providing sixty (60) days written notice of termination to the District;
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any
failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this
Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor.
The District shall provide thirty (30) days written notice of termination without cause. Upon any
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off
sets the District may have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination.

SECTION21.  OWNERSHIP OF DOcUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings,
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation,
inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant
to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when
developed and shall be considered work for hire.

SECTION 22.  PusLIC RECORDS. The Contractor understands and agrees that all documents

of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records,
and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in

Return to Agenda



handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Barry Jeskewich
(“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law,
the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the
service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested
public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at
a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that
public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term
and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public
Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District,
at no cost, all public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet
all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such
public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.
All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible
with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT,
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (321) 263-0132
EXT. 398, BJESKEWICH@VESTAPROPERTYSERVICES.COM OR AT 250
INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 208, LAKE MARY, FLORIDA 32746.

SECTION23.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 24.  HEeADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 25.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the Agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

SECTION 26.  E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS. The Contractor shall comply with and perform all
applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by
Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees.
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes. By entering into

Return to Agenda



this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract
with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately
preceding the date of this Agreement.

SECTION 27. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES. The Contractor agrees to
comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any
investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant to such section and to incorporate
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 28. STATEMENT REGARDING CHAPTER 287 REQUIREMENTS. The Contractor
acknowledges that, in addition to all Laws and Regulations that apply to this Agreement, the
following provisions of Florida law (“Public Integrity Laws”) apply to this Agreement:

A. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation of
the right to transact business with public entities;

B. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of the
right to transact business with public entities;

C. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with
scrutinized companies;

D. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or revocation
of the right to transact business with public entities; denial of economic benefits;
and

E. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign
countries of concern prohibited.

The Contractor acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that meet
certain criteria from bidding on or entering into or renewing a contract with governmental
entities, including with the District (“Prohibited Criteria”).

The Contractor acknowledges that the District may terminate this Agreement if the
Contractor is found to have met the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public Integrity Laws.

The Contractor certifies that in entering into this Agreement, neither it nor any of its
officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are
active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity, meets any of the Prohibited
Criteria, and in the event such status changes, the Contractor shall immediately notify the
District. By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that any renewal or extension of
this Agreement shall be deemed a recertification of such status.

SECTION 29. ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT. The Contractor does not use coercion
for labor or services as defined in Section 787.06, Florida Statutes, and the Contractor has

complied, and agrees to comply, with the provisions of Section 787.06, Florida Statutes.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]

Return to Agenda






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and Contractor execute this Agreement on the day and

year first written above.

Attest:

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Witness:

Exhibit A: Map of Wetland Areas
Exhibit B: Scope of Services

Return to Agenda

MAGNOLIA PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT

Dave Turner

Dave Turner (Sep 30, 2025 17:33:41 EDT)

Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors

PREMIER LAKES, INC.

Alex Kurth

Alex Kurth (Sep 30, 2025 17:41:16 EDT)

By: Premier Lakes, Inc.
Its: President




Exhibit A
Map of Wetland Areas

Return to Agenda



Exhibit B
Scope of Services

Return to Agenda


















2025 Aquatic Maintenance Services Agreement
(Premier Lakes) - Magnolia Park

Final Audit Report 2025-09-30
Created: 2025-09-30
By: Christian Dimaculangan (cdimaculangan@vestapropertyservices.com)
Status: Signed
Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAFLv3XfhkY6kuS7F0Pa1w0OF4Kkr7bA9Dg

"2025 Aquatic Maintenance Services Agreement (Premier Lakes
) - Magnolia Park" History

Document created by Christian Dimaculangan (cdimaculangan@vestapropertyservices.com)
2025-09-30 - 9:22:44 PM GMT

Document emailed to Dave Turner (disneydave2002@gmail.com) for signature
2025-09-30 - 9:22:50 PM GMT

Document emailed to Barry Jeskewich (bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com) for signature
2025-09-30 - 9:22:50 PM GMT

Document emailed to Alex Kurth (alex.kurth@premierlakesfl.com) for signature
2025-09-30 - 9:22:50 PM GMT

Email viewed by Barry Jeskewich (bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com)
2025-09-30 - 9:23:07 PM GMT

Email viewed by Dave Turner (disneydave2002@gmail.com)
2025-09-30 - 9:33:17 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Dave Turner (disneydave2002@gmail.com)
Signature Date: 2025-09-30 - 9:33:41 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Email viewed by Alex Kurth (alex.kurth@premierlakesfl.com)
2025-09-30 - 9:38:42 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Alex Kurth (alex.kurth@premierlakesfl.com)
Signature Date: 2025-09-30 - 9:41:16 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document e-signed by Barry Jeskewich (bjeskewich@vestapropertyservices.com)
Signature Date: 2025-09-30 - 9:54:22 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Return to Agenda




Agreement completed.
2025-09-30 - 9:54:22 PM GMT

Return to Agenda




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXHIBIT 13




© 00 ~No ohrh WDN PR

=
o

el ol
w N R

H
o

NN R R R R
NP O ®©Oow-N O Ul

23
24

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34
35

36

37
38

39
40

MINUTES OF MEETING
MAGNOLIA PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Magnolia Park Community
Development District was held on September 8, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. at Hilton Garden Inn Tampa
Riverview Brandon, 4328 Garden Vista Drive, Riverview, Florida 33578. The actions taken are
summarized as follows:

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: Roll Call
Mr. Jeskewich called the meeting to order and conducted roll call.
Present and constituting a quorum were:

David Turner (S1) Board Supervisor, Chair
Jean Williams (S2) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary
Robert Shannon (S4) Board Supervisor, Vice Chair

Also present were:
Barry Jeskewich District Manager, Vesta District Services
Tucker Mackie District Counsel, Kutak Rock (virtually)
Frank Nolte District Engineer, Stantec
Cristi Cochran Account Manager, United Land Services
Thomas Mootz United Land Services
Alex Kurth Premier Lakes
Kevin Riemensperger Steadfast Environmental

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: Staff Reports 1

A District Engineer Report — Greg Woodcock, Stantec

Mr. Nolte presented on behalf of Mr. Woodcock, and discussed adjustments to the
maintenance map with the Board and staff, particularly setback requirements for an
area by Lake Cherrywood that had recently been classed as a wetland following
plat review. Mr. Nolte noted that a potential next step could be having a discussion
with the Southwest Florida Water Management District and the Environmental
Protection Commission with regards to the possibility of reducing the setback and
installing riprap to mitigate pond bank erosion. Comments were heard from the
Board suggesting to discuss with any potentially impacted homeowners first, and
Ms. Mackie additionally observed that the Pond 19 area was fairly large.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments — Agenda Items (Limited
to 3 Minutes per Individual)

A resident expressed concerns about uneven maintenance and CDD communications.

A resident inquired about the process for obtaining permits to mow within the boundaries
of the wetland setback.

Multiple audience members highlighted potential negative impacts on property values
arising from increasingly poor quality of landscape and waterway maintenance.

Return to Agenda



41
42

43
44
45
46

47
48
49
50
51
52

53
54

55
56
57
58

59
60

61
62
63

64

65
66

67
68

69

70
71

72
73

74
75
76

Magnolia Park CDD September 8, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 5

Additional comments were made indicating that homeowner responsibilities for private
property were unclear.

On a MOTION by Mr. Shannon, SECONDED by Mr. Turner, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
approved moving forward with the process of obtaining a major modification to the permit to
reduce the wetland setback, and scheduling meetings with the relevant agencies, for Magnolia Park
Community Development District.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Business Matters
A. Consideration of Supervisor Appointments for Vacant Seat 3
No candidates for the vacancy in Seat 3 were in attendance.
1. Exhibit 1: Administration of Oaths of Office

2. Review of Sunshine and Public Records Laws
References:
a. Guide to Sunshine Amendment & Code of Ethics for Public
Officers & Employees
b. Government in the Sunshine Manual
C. Free Resources for Required Ethics Training

(The Board recessed the meeting at 6:11 p.m. and reconvened at 6:21 p.m.)
3. Exhibit 2: Consideration of Resolution 2025-09, Designating Officers

The Board opted to proceed with Mr. Turner as Chair, Mr. Shannon as Vice
Chair, Ms. Williams as Assistant Secretary, and Mr. Jeskewich as Secretary.

On a MOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Shannon, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the
Board adopted Resolution 2025-09, Designating Officers, for Magnolia Park Community
Development District.

B. Vendor Reports

1. Exhibit 3: Review of Magnolia Park CDD Website Maintenance Request
Log —7/1-8/29

2. Exhibit 4: Aquatic Maintenance — Mitchell Hartwig, Solitude Lake
Management

A representative of Solitude Lake Management was not present.

3. Exhibit 5: Landscape Maintenance — Cristi Cochran, United Land
Services

Ms. Cochran introduced Mr. Mootz to the Board as United Land Services’
branch manager.

a. Exhibit 6: Consideration of United Land Services Landscape and
Irrigation Maintenance Service Agreement Renewal (previously
presented)

Return to Agenda



https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Publications/GuideBookletInternet.pdf?cp=2024327
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Publications/GuideBookletInternet.pdf?cp=2024327
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/2024-government-in-the-sunshine-manual-web.pdf
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx

Magnolia Park CDD September 8, 2025

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 5
77 Discussion ensued between representatives from United Land
78 Services and the Board regarding potential discrepancies with the
79 maintenance map between the CDD and HOA’s respective
80 understandings, and updating the agreement accordingly.
81 This item was deferred until the September meeting when the
82 Business Development Director can present to the Board.
83 b. Exhibit 7: Consideration of Pre-approval Amount for United
84 Landscape 2025 Hurricane & Storm Cleanup
85 Additional proposals were walked on to the agenda by United Land
86 Services, being for a one-time cleanup of the perimeter of Pond 19, in the
87 amount of $3,628.13; vegetation removal along the fence line of Pond 29,
88 in the amount of $8,157.33; and for the removal of overgrowth along the
89 Falkenburg fence line, in the amount of $9,333.33.
90 All proposals from United Land Services were tabled to the next meeting.
91 4. Exhibit 8: Field Operations Report — Michael Bush, Vesta District
92 Services
93 Mr. Bush was not present to provide his report.
94 a. Consideration of Field Operations Proposals
95 C. Consideration of Aquatic Maintenance and Wetland Mitigation/Reporting Service
96 Proposals
97 1. Exhibit 9: Blue Water Aquatics
98 No representative from Blue Water Aquatics was in attendance.
99 2. Exhibit 10: Premier Lakes
100 Mr. Kurth presented on behalf of Premier Lakes.
101 3. Exhibit 11: Solitude Lake Management (Current Contracts)
102 In addition to the three proposals included in the published meeting agenda,
103 an additional proposal from Steadfast Environmental was walked on to the
104 agenda and presented by Mr. Riemensperger.
105 Both Mr. Kurth and Mr. Riemensperger fielded questions from the Board
106 regarding experience, team size, communications with the CDD, reporting
107 standards, and meeting attendance.

108 | On a MOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Shannon, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the
109 | Board approved for District staff to engage Premier Lakes for aquatic maintenance and wetland
110 | mitigation and reporting services, for Magnolia Park Community Development District.

111

112 | Ona MOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Turner, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
113 | approved the termination of the existing contracts with Solitude Lake Management under the 30-
114 | day notice clause, for Magnolia Park Community Development District.

Return to Agenda



115
116

117
118

119
120
121

122
123

124
125
126

127
128

129
130
131

132
133

134
135

136
137

138
139
140

141
142

143

144
145

146
147
148
149
150
151
152

Magnolia Park CDD September 8, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 5

Following the motion, Ms. Mackie stated that vendor participation at Board
meetings could be included in the language of the agreement with Premier Lakes.

D. Discussion on District’s Performance Measures/Standards
1. Exhibit 12: Review of FY 2025 Performance Measures/Standards

On a MOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Shannon, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the
Board accepted the FY 2025 Performance Measures/Standards as completed and achieved, for
Magnolia Park Community Development District.

2. Exhibit 13: Adoption of FY 2026 Performance Measures/Standards &
Annual Reporting Form

OnaMOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Turner, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
approved the FY 2026 Performance Measures/Standards & Annual Reporting Form, for Magnolia
Park Community Development District.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Staff Reports 2
A. District Counsel — Tucker Mackie, Kutak Rock

Ms. Mackie had nothing to report. Ms. Mackie responded to a Board inquiry about
ethics training, noting that this requirement would now be included as a checkbox
to indicate completion on the annual Form 1 filing.

B. District Manager — Barry Jeskewich, Vesta District Services
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Consent Agenda

A Exhibit 14: Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Board of
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held August 11, 2025

B. Exhibit 13: Consideration and Acceptance of the July 2025 Unaudited Financial
Report

OnaMOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Turner, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
approved Consent Agenda — items A & B as presented, for Magnolia Park Community
Development District.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Supervisor Requests (Includes Next Meeting
Agenda Item Requests)

There being none, the next item followed.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments — New Business (Limited to
3 minutes per individual for non-agenda items)

Comments were heard asking for clarification on what caused the wetlands change on the
maintenance map and what the next steps were with regards to determining how any
changes would affect homeowners in the proximity. Mr. Jeskewich noted the resources
available on the CDD website, as well as his own phone number and email should anyone
wish to submit a public records request for information that could not be found. The Board
additionally noted that there was an online form to submit maintenance requests to District
staff, and that entries were compiled for review on every meeting agenda. Ms. Mackie

Return to Agenda




153
154
155
156

157
158
159
160
161
162

163
164
165

166

167
168
169

170
171
172

173
174

175
176
177

178
179

180
181

Magnolia Park CDD September 8, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 5 of 5

additionally noted that she expected for the District Engineer to report back at the next
meeting on the procedure for requesting a major modification, to adjust the wetland setback
to allow for property owners within that boundary to resume performing various
maintenance activities.

An audience member asked whether Pond 19 was included in the maintenance duties being
taken on by the new aquatics vendor. Some additional comments suggested that it was not
part of the scope of the RFP, and discussion ensued regarding the classification between
pond, lake, and wetlands. Mr. Jeskewich commented that it might not be included in the
list of ponds but may be covered under the wetland mitigation and maintenance
agreements, and that he would seek clarification.

Additional comments were heard regarding hazards related to potentially exposed wiring
on the sprinkler system, as well as a crack across two sidewalk slabs on the north end of
Magnolia Park.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Meeting Quorum Check

The next Magnolia Park Community Development District meeting is scheduled for 5:30 p.m. on
October 13, 2025 at Hilton Garden Inn Tampa Riverview Brandon, 4328 Garden Vista Drive,
Riverview, Florida 33578.

Mr. Turner, Ms. Williams, and Mr. Shannon affirmed their intent to attend in person.
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Action Items Summary
ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Adjournment

On a MOTION by Ms. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Shannon, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the
Board adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m., for Magnolia Park Community Development District.

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly
noticed meeting held on October 13, 2025.

o Barry Jeskewich, Secretary o David Turner, Chair

Return to Agenda




eeeeeeeeeeeeee

EXRHIBIT 14




W Park
Commanity Development District

Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Penced Ending
Hugust 31, 2025




Magnolia Park CDD

Balance Sheet

1 Assets:

2 Operating Account

3 Trust Accounts:

4  Reserve Fund

5  Prepayment Fund
6 Revenue Fund

7 Sinking Fund

8 Interest Fund

9 Accounts Receivable
10 On Roll Assessments Receivable
11 Undeposited funds
12 Due From Other

13 Prepaid Items

14 Deposits

15 Total Assets

16 Liabilities:

17 Accounts Payable
18 Due to Other

19 Deferred Revenue
20 Total Liabilities

21 Fund Balance:

22 Non-Spendable:

23 Prepaid & Deposits
24 Assigned:

25  Capital Reserves
26  Operating Capital
27 Unassigned

28 Total Fund Balance

29 Total Liabilities & Fund Balance

Return to Agenda

August 31, 2025

General
Fund

2020 Debt
Service Fund

Total

$ 1,515,224

$ 1,515,224

- 7,500 7,500

- 48,357 48,357

346 - 346

460 . 460

$ 1,516,030 55,857 $ 1,571,887
$ - - -
806 - 806

560,785 - 560,785
245,020 - 245,020
709,419 55,857 765,276
1,516,030 55,857 1,571,887

$ 1,516,030 55,857 $ 1,571,887




Magnolia Park
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2023 to August 31, 2025

Adopted Current Year to Variance % of
Budget Month Date +/(-) Budget

1 Revenues:

2 Assessments On-Roll S 596,569 S - S 598,183 S 1,613 100.27%
3 Interest - - - - 0.00%
4 Miscellaneous 3,200 - - (3,200) 0.00%
5 Total Revenues $ 599,769 S - $ 598,183 S (1,587) 99.74%
6 Expenditures:

7 Administrative

8  Board of Supervisors 12,000 600 8,400 (3,600) 70.00%
9  Payroll Taxes 918 46 643 (275) 70.00%
10  Payroll Services 650 50 500 (150) 76.92%
11 Management Consulting Services 36,745 3,062 33,683 (3,062) 91.67%
12 General Administrative 4,326 361 3,966 (361) 91.67%
13 Miscellaneous & Contingency 2,293 - - (2,293) 0.00%
14 Assessment Administration 6,736 561 6,175 (561) 91.67%
15 Auditing 3,500 270 3,420 (80) 97.73%
16  Insurance - Liability, Property & Casuality 13,000 - 11,365 (1,635) 87.42%
17  Regulatory & Permit Fees 175 - 180 5 102.65%
18 Legal advertisments 1,000 - 693 (307) 69.35%
19 Engineering Services 6,500 7,773 20,527 14,027 315.80%
20  Legal Services 19,000 1,262 8,148 (10,852) 42.88%
21  Postage & Freight (Mass Mailing) 1,500 - 28 (1,472) 1.86%
22 Website 2,075 90 2,491 416 120.07%
23 Meeting Room 1,500 - 2,208 708 147.20%
24 Total Administrative 111,918 14,075 102,427 (9,491) 91.52%
25 Debt Service Administration
26 Trustee Fees 4,149 - 4,148 (1) 99.99%
27  Arbitrage 650 - - (650) 0.00%
28 Trust Fund Accounting 3,245 - 2,704 (541) 83.33%
29 Total Debt Service Administration 8,044 - 6,853 (1,191) 85.19%
30 Field Operations
31 Electricity General 3,000 139 1,615 (1,385) 53.84%
32 Water 180 - - (180) 0.00%
33 Streetlights 19,022 1,927 21,137 2,115 111.12%
34 Pond Mitigation, Monitoring & Maintenance 1,600 - - (1,600) 0.00%
35 Pond & Lake Maintenance 30,000 - 36,633 6,633 122.11%
36 Pond & Lake Maintenance - Special Services 30,000 - - (30,000) 0.00%
37 Irrigation Maintenance 5,000 - 12,378 7,378 2.48
38 Landscape Maintenance 200,000 - 159,293 (40,707) 79.65%
39 Landscape Replenishment 10,000 - 45,151 35,151 451.51%
40 Landscape Extra Projects 12,500 - 1,811 (10,689) 14.49%
41 Tree Trimming 1,715 - 1,395 (321) 81.31%

Return to Agenda



42 Field Contingency
43 Renewal & Replacement Reserve
44 Total Field Operations

45 Total Expenditures

46 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

47 Other Financing Sources (Uses)

48 Transfer In

49 Transfer Out

50 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

51 Fund Balance - Beginning

52 Fund Balance - Ending

Return to Agenda

12,000 31,350 49,184 37,184
154,790 - - (154,790)
479,807 33,416 328,597 (151,210)

$ 599,769 $ 47,491 $ 437,876 $ (161,893)
$ (47,491) $ 160,306
s -
1,355,723

$ 1,516,030

409.86%
0.00%
68.49%

73.01%



Magnolia Park
Debt Service Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2023 to August 31, 2025

1 Revenues:

2 Special Assessments (Net)
3 Interest
4 Total Revenues

s Expenditures:
6 Debt Service Requirement
7 May 1, 2025

8 Interest

9 Principal
10  November 1, 2025
11 Interest

12 Total Expenditures

13 Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

14 Other Financing Sources (Uses)

15 Transfer In

16 Transfer Out

17 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

18 Fund Balance - Beginning

19 Fund Balance - Ending

Return to Agenda

Adopted Year to Variance
Budget Date +/(-)
S 103,720 S 104,001 S 281
- 1,799 1,799
$ 103,720 $ 105,799 S 2,079
22,413 22,413 (1)
57,000 57,000 -
21,700 22,413 713
$ 101,113 $ 101,825 S 712
S 2,607 S 3,974
$ -
51,883
S 55,857



Magnolia Park CDD
Check Register

FY2025
Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

9/30/2023 Balance Forward $ 1,370,320.55
10/01/2024  01ACH100124 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 08.02.24 to 09.03.24 963.88 1,369,356.67
10/01/2024  02ACH100124 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 08.02.24-09.03.24 997.24 1,368,359.43
10/07/2024 01ACH100724 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,368,316.23
10/21/2024 100222 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3454242 (Reference: General Counsel. ) 640.00 1,367,676.23
10/21/2024 100223 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI1107250 (Reference: Wetland Management. ) 1,040.00 1,366,636.23
10/21/2024 100224 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 422540 (Reference: Management Fees Oct 24. ) 4,296.00 1,362,340.23
10/21/2024 100225 United Land Services Invoice: 106005 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance. ) Invoice: 110546 (Reference: Replaced stuc... 17,261.02 1,345,079.21
10/21/2024 100226 SchoolNow Invoice: INV-SN-295 (Reference: Website Hosting. ) 1,552.50 1,343,526.71
10/22/2024 1778 EGIS INSURANCE & RISK ADVISORS Insurance FY 10/1/24 - 10/1/25 Policy #100124768 11,365.00 1,332,161.71
10/28/2024  01ACH102824 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 08.31.24 - 10.01.24 125.75 1,332,035.96
10/29/2024  01ACH102924 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 09.04.24-10.02.24 997.24 1,331,038.72
10/29/2024  02ACH102924 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 09.04.24-10.02.24 963.88 1,330,074.84
10/29/2024 100227 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3467782 (Reference: Legal Service 9.24. ) 736.00 1,329,338.84
10/29/2024 100228 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2297362 (Reference: General Consulting. ) 355.00 1,328,983.84
10/31/2024 Deposit 5,752.04 1,334,735.88
10/31/2024 5,752.04 41,336.71 1,334,735.88

11/5/2024 01ACH110524 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,334,692.68

11/6/2024 Deposit 2,713.42 1,337,406.10

11/8/2024 100229  Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI114659 (Reference: Lake Maintenance 10.24. ) 3,068.00 1,334,338.10

11/8/2024 100230  United Land Services Invoice: 113807 (Reference: Landscape Maint. October 2024. ) 15,790.00 1,318,548.10
11/11/2024 1779  Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 4/8/24 184.70 1,318,363.40
11/15/2024 Deposit 8,161.68 1,326,525.08
11/22/2024 Deposit 6,488.05 1,333,013.13
11/22/2024  112224ACH1 Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 11/12/24 184.70 1,332,828.43
11/22/2024  112224ACH2 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 11/12/24 184.70 1,332,643.73
11/22/2024  112224ACH3 Engage Peo BOS MTG 11/12/24 172.40 1,332,471.33
11/22/2024  112224ACH4 Jean Williams BOS MTG 11/12/24 184.70 1,332,286.63
11/22/2024  112224ACH5 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 11/12/24 184.70 1,332,101.93
11/25/2024 1780 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTL FY 2024/2025 Special District Invoice Fee/Update Form 175.00 1,331,926.93
11/25/2024 100231 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 423021 (Reference: Monthly DM Fees - Nov 2024. ) Invoice: 422945 (Reference: Billable... 4,325.33 1,327,601.60
11/25/2024 100232  Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2308914 (Reference: General Consulting October 2024. ) 1,953.75 1,325,647.85
11/30/2024 17,363.15 26,451.18 1,325,647.85
12/02/2024  01ACH120224 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 10.02.24 - 10.31.24 38.10 1,325,609.75
12/03/2024 01ACH120324 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 10.03.24 - 11.01.24 997.24 1,324,612.51
12/03/2024  02ACH120324 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 10.03.24 - 11.01.24 963.88 1,323,648.63
12/03/2024 Deposit 11,914.02 1,335,562.65
12/05/2024 01ACH120524 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,335,519.45
12/06/2024 Deposit 438,934.03 1,774,453.48
12/11/2024 1781 US BANK Trustee Fees - FY 11/01/24-10/31/25 4,148.38 1,770,305.10
12/12/2024 100233 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 423472 (Reference: Monthly DM Fees - Dec 2024. ) Invoice: 423565 (Reference: Billable... 4,479.00 1,765,826.10
12/12/2024 100234 Business Observer Invoice: 24-03478H (Reference: Legal Advertising. ) 59.06 1,765,767.04
12/12/2024 100235 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PS1122339 (Reference: Lake Watch 11/24. ) Invoice: PS1129012 (Reference: Wetland Mana... 8,424.00 1,757,343.04
12/12/2024 100236 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2322737 (Reference: General Counsel thru 11/30/24. ) 2,774.56 1,754,568.48
12/12/2024 100237 United Land Services Invoice: 116724 (Reference: Elevate Tree. ) Invoice: 116726 (Reference: Flush Cut 2 Sabal Palm... 22,578.59 1,731,989.89
12/13/2024 100238 United Land Services Invoice: 117059 (Reference: Hurricane Clean up oct 24 Remove 85 trees. ) 22,150.00 1,709,839.89
12/13/2024  121324ACH1 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 12/09/24 184.70 1,709,655.19
12/13/2024  121324ACH2 Engage Peo BOS MTG 12/09/24 172.40 1,709,482.79
12/13/2024  121324ACH3 Jean Williams BOS MTG 12/09/24 184.70 1,709,298.09
12/13/2024 79 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 12/09/24 184.70 1,709,113.39
12/13/2024  121324ACH4 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 12/09/24 184.70 1,708,928.69
12/17/2024 Deposit 52,359.24 1,761,287.93
12/23/2024 100239 United Land Services Invoice: 125781 (Reference: Grind 63 Tree Stumps & Haul Away Shavings 12.16.24. ) 11,428.57 1,749,859.36
12/30/2024 100240 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3501397 (Reference: Legal Service October & November 2024. ) 1,024.00 1,748,835.36
12/31/2024  01ACH123124 TECO Magnolia Park Bivd PH F 11.02.24 - 12.03.24 997.24 1,747,838.12
12/31/2024  02ACH123124 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 11.01.24 - 12.02.24 404.72 1,747,433.40
12/31/2024  03ACH123124 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 11.02.24 - 12.03.24 963.88 1,746,469.52

Return to Agenda



12/31/2024 503,207.29 # 82,385.62 1,746,469.52
01/03/2025 1783 American Power Washing Yellow Curb Striping 4,200.00 1,742,269.52
01/03/2025 100241 United Land Services Invoice: 124841 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance Dec 2024. ) 15,790.00 1,726,479.52
01/06/2025 ACH010625 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,726,436.32
01/07/2025 Deposit 151,614.08 1,878,050.40
01/08/2025 100242 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 424084 (Reference: Monthly DM Fees - Jan 2025. ) 4,296.00 1,873,754.40
01/08/2025 100243 Business Observer Invoice: 25-00014H (Reference: Legal Advertising. ) 56.88 1,873,697.52
01/08/2025 100244 United Land Services Invoice: 127268 (Reference: December 2024 Irrigation Repairs. ) 477.85 1,873,219.67
01/14/2025 100245 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2335680 (Reference: 2025 FY General Consulting - Dec 2024. ) 1,200.25 1,872,019.42
01/15/2025 100246 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 424191 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Dec 2024. ) 183.00 1,871,836.42
01/17/2025 100247 Big Dog Fence Inc. Invoice: 241209-B-DI (Reference: Fencing Install - Deposit. ) 10,696.00 1,861,140.42
01/28/2025 100248 United Land Services Invoice: 130051 (Reference: Removal of Excess Overgrowth. ) Invoice: 130056 (Reference: Remove... 3,567.11 1,857,573.31
01/31/2025 01ACH013125 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 12.03.24 - 01.02.25 964.72 1,856,608.59
01/31/2025 02ACH013125 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 12.03.24 - 01.02.24 892.74 1,855,715.85
01/31/2025 03ACH013125 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 12.03.24 - 01.02.25 22.48 1,855,693.37
01/31/2025 100249 Business Observer Invoice: 25-00291H (Reference: Legal Advertising. ) 56.88 1,855,636.49
01/31/2025 100250 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3514424 (Reference: General Counsel Dec 24. ) 736.00 1,854,900.49
01/31/2025 Deposit 865.62 1,855,766.11
01/31/2025 152,479.70 43,183.11 1,855,766.11
02/04/2025 100251 United Land Services Invoice: 129025 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance January 2025. ) 15,790.00 1,839,976.11
02/04/2025 100252 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI135470 (Reference: Lake Maintenance January 2025. ) 3,068.00 1,836,908.11
02/05/2025 01ACH020525 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,836,864.91
02/07/2025 Deposit 9,688.10 1,846,553.01
02/10/2025 100253 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 424718 (Reference: Monthly DM Fees - Feb 2025. ) 4,296.00 1,842,257.01
02/10/2025 100254 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2350290 (Reference: 2025 FY General Consulting - Jan 2025. ) 609.00 1,841,648.01
02/14/2025 021425PR1 Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 1/13/25 184.70 1,841,463.31
02/14/2025 021425PR2 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 1/13/25 184.70 1,841,278.61
02/14/2025 021425PR3 Engage Peo BOS MTG 1/13/25 203.00 1,841,075.61
02/14/2025 021425PR4 Jean Williams BOS MTG 1/13/25 184.70 1,840,890.91
02/14/2025 81 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 1/13/25 184.70 1,840,706.21
02/14/2025 021425PR5 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 1/13/25 184.70 1,840,521.51
02/14/2025 021425PR6 Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 2/10/25 184.70 1,840,336.81
02/14/2025 021425PR7 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 2/10/25 184.70 1,840,152.11
02/14/2025 021425PR8 Engage Peo BOS MTG 2/10/25 203.00 1,839,949.11
02/14/2025 021425PR9 Jean Williams BOS MTG 2/10/25 184.70 1,839,764.41
02/14/2025 80 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 2/10/25 184.70 1,839,5679.71
02/14/2025 021425PR10 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 2/10/25 184.70 1,839,395.01
02/19/2025 100255 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 424850 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Jan 2025. ) 565.02 1,838,829.99
02/28/2025  01ACH022825 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 01.03.25 - 01.31.25 124.29 1,838,705.70
02/28/2025 9,688.10 26,748.51 1,838,705.70
03/03/2025 100256 United Land Services Invoice: 134409 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance Feb 2025. ) 15,790.00 1,822,915.70
03/03/2025 100257 Business Observer Invoice: 25-00553H (Reference: Legal Advertising. ) 56.88 1,822,858.82
03/03/2025 100258 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI141468 (Reference: Lake Maintenance - Feb 2025. ) 3,068.00 1,819,790.82
03/03/2025 100259 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 424945 (Reference: Management Fees Mar 25. ) 4,296.00 1,815,494.82
03/03/2025 01ACH030325 TECO Magnolia Park Bivd PH F 01.04.25 - 02.03.25 964.72 1,814,530.10
03/03/2025 02ACH030325 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 01.04.25 - 02.03.25 928.14 1,813,601.96
03/05/2025 01ACH030525 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,813,558.76
03/07/2025 100260 United Land Services Invoice: 137177 (Reference: cut back overgrowth at pond. ) Invoice: 137182 (Reference: clear a... 9,398.58 1,804,160.18
03/07/2025 100261 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3535108 (Reference: general counsel jan25. ) 1,276.50 1,802,883.68
03/10/2025 Deposit 3,084.98 1,805,968.66
03/11/2025 100262 Big Dog Fence Inc. Invoice: 133936 (Reference: Fence repair/Replace- Balance. ) 2,154.00 1,803,814.66
03/11/2025 100263 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2364237 (Reference: General Consulting 2025FY. ) 3,738.54 1,800,076.12
03/13/2025 100264 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 425360 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Feb 2025. ) 394.89 1,799,681.23
03/13/2025 100265 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 22589 (Reference: Private Property signs installed on u-channel posts. ) 510.00 1,799,171.23
03/21/2025 032125B0OS1 Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 3/10/25 184.70 1,798,986.53
03/21/2025 032125B0OS2 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 3/10/25 184.70 1,798,801.83
03/21/2025 032125BOS3 Engage Peo BOS MTG 3/10/25 172.40 1,798,629.43
03/21/2025 032125BOS4 Jean Williams BOS MTG 3/10/25 184.70 1,798,444.73
03/21/2025 82 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 3/10/25 184.70 1,798,260.03
03/24/2025 100266 DIBARTOLOMEO, McBEE, HARTLEY, & B/ Invoice: 90108431 (Reference: Audit Services thru September 2024. ) 3,150.00 1,795,110.03
03/26/2025 1784 US Bank Tax Distribution Tax Distribution Series 2020 101,844.20 1,693,265.83
03/28/2025 100267 Business Observer Invoice: 25-00882H (Reference: Notice of Board of Supervisors workshop. ) 70.00 1,693,195.83

Return to Agenda



03/28/2025 01ACH032825 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 02.01.25- 03.03.25 141.57 1,693,054.26
03/31/2025 3,084.98 148,736.42 1,693,054.26
04/01/2025 100268 United Land Services Invoice: 138393 (Reference: Landscape maintenance march25. ) 15,790.00 1,677,264.26
04/01/2025 100269 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI1147565 (Reference: annual Maintenance. ) Invoice: PS1147582 (Reference: annual Mai... 4,108.00 1,673,156.26
04/01/2025 100270 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 425421 (Reference: Monthly Management Apr25. ) 4,296.00 1,668,860.26
04/01/2025 01ACH040125 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 02.04.25- 03.04.25 937.69 1,667,922.57
04/01/2025 02ACH040125 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 02.04.25- 03.04.25 973.01 1,666,949.56
04/07/2025 100271 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2377743 (Reference: Engineering service. ) 1,604.00 1,665,345.56
04/07/2025 Deposit 10,649.13 1,675,994.69
04/07/2025 01ACH040725 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,675,951.49
04/09/2025 100272 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3550745 (Reference: Professional legal services rendered. ) 715.50 1,675,235.99
04/14/2025 100273 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 425910 (Reference: meeting at Hilton garden inn. ) 369.02 1,674,866.97
04/25/2025  042525B0S1 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 4/14/25 184.70 1,674,682.27
04/25/2025  042525B0S2 Engage Peo BOS MTG 4/14/25 172.40 1,674,509.87
04/25/2025  042525BOS3 Jean Williams BOS MTG 4/14/25 184.70 1,674,325.17
04/25/2025 83 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 4/14/25 184.70 1,674,140.47
04/25/2025 042525B0OS4 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 4/14/25 184.70 1,673,955.77
04/25/2025 Deposit 204.70 1,674,160.47
04/29/2025 01ACH042925 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 03.04.25- 04.01.25 151.97 1,674,008.50
04/30/2025 01ACH043025 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 03.05.25- 04.02.25 969.53 1,673,038.97
04/30/2025  02ACH043025 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 03.05.25- 04.02.25 937.69 1,672,101.28
04/30/2025 10,853.83 31,806.81 1,672,101.28
05/05/2025 100274 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI154386 (Reference: annual Maintenance Apr25. ) 3,068.00 1,669,033.28
05/05/2025 100275 United Land Services Invoice: 144402 (Reference: Landscape maintenance Apr25. ) 15,790.00 1,653,243.28
05/05/2025 100276 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 425997 (Reference: Monthly contracted management fees May25. ) 4,296.00 1,648,947.28
05/05/2025 01ACH050525 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,648,904.08
05/06/2025 100277 Business Observer Invoice: 25-01228H (Reference: Notice of Board of Supervisors meeting. ) 70.00 1,648,834.08
05/06/2025 100278 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3555790 (Reference: Professional legal services rendered. ) 801.00 1,648,033.08
05/07/2025 Deposit 1,202.39 1,649,235.47
05/15/2025 100279 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 426664 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Apr 2025. ) 382.82 1,648,852.65
05/22/2025 100280 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2397458 (Reference: 2025 FY General Consulting. ) 220.00 1,648,632.65
05/23/2025 052325B0OS1 Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 5/12/25 184.70 1,648,447.95
05/23/2025 052325B0OS2 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 5/12/25 184.70 1,648,263.25
05/23/2025 052325BOS3 Engage Peo BOS MTG 5/12/25 203.00 1,648,060.25
05/23/2025 052325BOS4 Jean Williams BOS MTG 5/12/25 184.70 1,647,875.55
05/23/2025 84 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 5/12/25 184.70 1,647,690.85
05/23/2025 052325BOS5 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 5/12/25 184.70 1,647,506.15
05/27/2025 100281 United Land Services Invoice: 151695 (Reference: Labor to Flush Cut 2 Leaning Trees and Dump Fee. ) 1,394.50 1,646,111.65
05/29/2025 01ACH052925 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 04.02.25- 05.01.25 151.34 1,645,960.31
05/30/2025 01ACH053025 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 04.03.25- 05.02.25 937.69 1,645,022.62
05/30/2025  02ACH053025 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 04.03.25- 05.02.25 967.01 1,644,055.61
05/30/2025 1,202.39 29,248.06 1,644,055.61
06/04/2025 100282 Business Observer Invoice: 25-01526H (Reference: Notice of Board of Supervisors Meeting. ) 70.00 1,643,985.61
06/04/2025 100283 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PS1162212 (Reference: annual Maintenance May25. ) Invoice: PSI177878 (Reference: annu... 4,149.60 1,639,836.01
06/04/2025 100284 United Land Services Invoice: 150112 (Reference: Magnolia Park CDD Landscape Maintenance May 2025. ) 15,790.00 1,624,046.01
06/04/2025 100285 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 426749 (Reference: Monthly contracted management fees June25. ) 4,296.00 1,619,750.01
06/05/2025 01ACH060525 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,619,706.81
06/09/2025 Deposit 915.38 1,620,622.19
06/10/2025 100286 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 427140 (Reference: Billable Expenses - MAY 25. ) 53.48 1,620,568.71
06/10/2025 100287 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3579940 (Reference: Professional Legal Services Rendered. ) 1,751.50 1,618,817.21
06/10/2025 100288 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2405991 (Reference: 2025 FY General Consulting. ) 270.02 1,618,547.19
06/16/2025 100289 United Land Services Invoice: 154344 (Reference: Controller E Repairs - Damage By Spectrum 5/30/2025. ) Invoice: 15... 5,048.78 1,613,498.41
06/18/2025 Deposit 4,209.77 1,617,708.18
06/27/2025 062725BOS1 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 6/9/25 184.70 1,617,523.48
06/27/2025 062725B0OS2 Engage Peo BOS MTG 6/9/25 172.40 1,617,351.08
06/27/2025 062725BOS3 Jean Williams BOS MTG 6/9/25 184.70 1,617,166.38
06/27/2025 85 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 6/9/25 184.70 1,616,981.68
06/27/2025 062725B0OS4 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 6/9/25 184.70 1,616,796.98
06/30/2025 100290 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3583038 (Reference: Professional legal services rendered. ) 582.00 1,616,214.98
06/30/2025 100291 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI177775 (Reference: annual Maintenance JUN25- Wetland 1 & 2. ) Invoice: PSI177763 (... 4,488.64 1,611,726.34
06/30/2025 100292 United Land Services Invoice: 155523 (Reference: Monthly Landscape Maintenance June 2025. ) 15,790.00 1,595,936.34
06/30/2025 01ACH063025 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 05.02.25- 06.02.25 180.31 1,595,756.03

Return to Agenda



06/30/2025 5,125.15 53,424.73 1,595,756.03
07/01/2025 01ACHO070125 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 05.03.25- 06.03.25 978.15 1,594,777.88
07/01/2025  02ACH070125 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 05.03.25- 06.03.25 948.88 1,593,829.00
07/03/2025 100293 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2418292 (Reference: 2025 FY General Consulting. ) 384.00 1,593,445.00
07/07/2025 01ACH070725 Google Services Monthly services 43.20 1,593,401.80
07/08/2025 100294 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 427211 (Reference: Monthly contracted management. ) 4,296.00 1,589,105.80
07/14/2025 100295 Business Observer Invoice: 25-01966H (Reference: Notice of Public Hearing and Board of Supervisors Meeting 8/11/25... 183.76 1,588,922.04
07/17/2025 Deposit 44.14 1,588,966.18
07/25/2025 072525ACH Adelmarie Bones BOS MTG 6/14/25 184.70 1,588,781.48
07/25/2025  072525ACH1 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 6/14/25 184.70 1,588,596.78
07/25/2025 072525ACH3 Engage Peo BOS MTG 6/14/25 172.40 1,5688,424.38
07/25/2025 072525ACH2 Jean Williams BOS MTG 6/14/25 184.70 1,588,239.68
07/25/2025 86 Matthew J. Zurcher BOS MTG 6/14/25 184.70 1,588,054.98
07/30/2025 01ACH073025 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 06.03.25- 07.01.25 135.40 1,587,919.58
07/31/2025 01ACHO073125 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 06.04.25- 07.02.25 948.88 1,586,970.70
07/31/2025 02ACH073125 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 06.04.25- 07.02.25 978.15 1,585,992.55
07/31/2025 100296 United Land Services Invoice: 160241 (Reference: Job #134112 - Magnolia Park CDD Landscape Maintenance July 2025. ) 15,790.00 1,5670,202.55
07/31/2025 100297 Business Observer Invoice: 25-01832H (Reference: Notice of Board of Supervisors Meeting 7/14/25. ) 70.00 1,570,132.55
07/31/2025 100298 Solitude Lake Management Invoice: PSI186052 (Reference: annual Maintenance July25. ) 3,190.72 1,566,941.83
07/31/2025 10,250.30 84,427.69 1,566,941.83
8/4/2025 100299  United Land Services Invoice: 163152 (Reference: Job #174297 - Magnolia Park CDD - June Irrigation Repairs. ) 850 1,566,091.83
8/5/2025 01ACH080525 Google Services Monthly services 48.53 1,566,043.30
8/18/2025 100300 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 428113 (Reference: Management Fees Aug 25. ) 4,296.00 1,561,747.30
8/20/2025 100301  Stantec Consulting Services, Inc Invoice: 2438144 (Reference: General Counsel July 25. ) 7,772.95 1,553,974.35
8/20/2025 100302 VESTA DISTRICT SERVICES Invoice: 428051 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Jul 2025. ) 369 1,5653,605.35
8/21/2025 1785  US Bank Tax Distribution Tax Distribution Series 2020 3,008.20 1,550,597.15
8/21/2025 100303 Kutak Rock LLP Invoice: 3611344 (Reference: Legal services June 25. ) 1,261.50 1,549,335.65
8/22/2025 082225BOS1 DAVID TURNER BOS MTG 8/11/25 184.7 1,549,150.95
8/22/2025 082225B0S2 Engage Peo BOS MTG 8/11/25 141.8 1,549,009.15
8/22/2025 082225BOS3 Jean Williams BOS MTG 8/11/25 184.7 1,548,824.45
8/22/2025 082225BOS4 Robert Shannon BOS MTG 8/11/25 184.7 1,548,639.75
8/26/2025 100304  Finn Outdoor Invoice: 2933 (Reference: Erosion/Pond Bank Restoration. ) 31,350.00 1,517,289.75
8/28/2025 01ACH082825 TECO 6510 Falkenburg Rd 07.02.25- 07.31.25 139.13 1,517,150.62
8/29/2025 01ACH082925 TECO Faulkenburg/Progress 07.03.25- 08.01.25 948.88 1,516,201.74
8/29/2025 02ACH082925 TECO Magnolia Park Blvd PH F 07.03.25- 08.01.25 978.15 1,515,223.59
08/31/2025 0.00 51,718.24 1,515,223.59

Return to Agenda



	@1CL
	@2025-10-13 Draft Agenda - MP
	1 EXHIBIT cover 1
	1a Magnolia Park Maintenance Requests (through 10-6)

	2 EXHIBIT cover 2
	3 EXHIBIT cover 3
	3a Vendor Reports - United Landscape - Magnolia Park CDD October Landscape Audit

	4 EXHIBIT cover 4
	4a Vendor Reports - United Landscape - Renewal 2025-2026. Unsigned
	Magnolia Park Landscape Agreement 2025. Unsigned.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	United Land Services - MP Landscape Maintenance 8-1-2025.pdf

	Price Page Only. Magnolia Park CDD.pdf

	Magnolia Park - Maintenance Map.pdf


	5 EXHIBIT cover 5
	5a Magnolia Park. United Landscape 2025 Hurricane & Storm Cleanup Rates

	6 EXHIBIT cover 6
	6a WOE AA ULS - MP Cleanup Mow Pond 19 Perimeter #182763 - $3,628.13

	7 EXHIBIT cover 7
	7a WOE BA ULS - MP Remove Vegetation Pond 29 Fence #187403 - $8,157.33

	8 EXHIBIT cover 8
	8a WOE CA ULS - MP Remove Overgrowth at Falkenberg Fence #186703 - $9,333.33

	9 EXHIBIT cover 9
	9a Quote to Repair Irrigation September 2025
	9b Vendor Reports - United Landscape - IMC September
	Sept IMC Page 1
	Sept IMC Page 2
	Sept IMC Page 3
	Sept IMC Page 4
	Sept IMC Page 5
	Sept IMC Page 6
	Sept IMC Page 7
	Sept IMC Page 8

	9c Controller A Wire

	10 EXHIBIT cover 10
	10a Quote to Install 2 Wire Into Conduit

	11 EXHIBIT cover 11
	11a Field Report Mag Park Oct 2025.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	THANK YOU


	12 EXHIBIT cover 12
	12a Notice of Termination of Aquatic Maintenance and Monitoring Agreements with Solitude
	12b 2025 Aquatic Maintenance Services Agreement (Premier Lakes) - Magnolia Park
	12c 2025 Mitigation Services Agreement (Premier Lakes) - Magnolia Park - signed

	13 EXHIBIT cover 13
	13a Consent Agenda - 2025-09-08 MP Meeting Minutes

	14 EXHIBIT cover 14
	14a Consent Agenda - August 2025 Financials
	Cover
	Bal Sht
	Gen Fund
	Debt Service
	Check Reg



	Return to Agenda: 


